
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday 26 September 2018
2.00 pm
Warspite Room, Council House

Members:
Councillor  Mrs Aspinall, Chair
Councillor Mrs Bowyer, Vice Chair
Councillors Corvid, Hendy, James, Laing, Loveridge, Dr Mahony and Parker-Delaz-Ajete.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 
Chamber, councilors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 
recording for the webcast.

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with the authority’s published policy.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - Get Involved

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Oversight and Governance
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council
Ballard House
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ

Please ask for  Amelia Boulter, 
Democratic Support Officer
T 01752  668000
E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk
Published 18 September 2018

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings/getinvolved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings


Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

1. Apologies  

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Councillors.

2. Declarations of Interest  

Councillors will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda.

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 July 2018.

4. Chair's Urgent Business  

To receive reports on business which in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 
forward for urgent consideration.

5. University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust CQC Report  (Pages 7 - 36)

6. Never Events Update  (Pages 37 - 38)

7. University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust Winter Plan 
Presentation  

8. STP Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy  (Pages 39 - 64)

9. Flu Vaccinations for Front Line Staff  (Pages 65 - 66)

10. Work Programme  (Pages 67 - 70)

11. Tracking Resolutions  (Pages 71 - 72)



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 25 July 2018

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 25 July 2018

PRESENT:

Councillor Mrs Aspinall, in the Chair.
Councillor Mrs Bowyer, Vice Chair.
Councillors Corvid, Hendy, James, Dr Mahony, Parker-Delaz-Ajete and Vincent.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Loveridge

Also in attendance: Kevin Baber (Chief Operating Officer) and Amanda Nash (Head 
of Communications) from University Hospital Plymouth Trust NHS, Councillor Ian 
Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care), Carole Burgoyne 
(Strategic Director for People), Anna Coles (Co-operative Strategic 
Commissioning), Nicola Jones (NEW Devon CCG), Tony Gravett, Healthwatch 
Deputy Manager and Amelia Boulter (Democratic Support Adviser).

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.45 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the Panel will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so 
they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 
whether these minutes have been amended.

9. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest.

10. Minutes  

Agreed the minutes of the meeting 13 June 2018.

11. Chair's Urgent Business  

The Chair reported that members of the Committee visited the Acute Assessment 
Unit and were given a valuable introduction into how the unit interrelated with the 
emergency department.  They were shown plans for a new emergency department 
which desperately needs updating and were introduced to staff that work brilliantly 
within the current constraints of the emergency department.  The Chair gave thanks 
to Kevin Baber and Amanda Nash for taking the time to show them around.

12. An update on our Plymouth System Reset  

Kevin Baber (Chief Operating Officer) and Amanda Nash (Head of Communications) 
from University Hospital Plymouth Trust NHS were present for this item.  It was 
reported that -

(a) the hospital failed to achieve the 95% accident and emergency 
target for the last two years and even with including the minor 
injury unit (MIU) attendances still failed to achieve the national 

Page 1



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 25 July 2018

standard.  From August last year the hospital took over 
responsibility for the MIUs at Devonport, Kingsbridge and 
Tavistock;    

(b) on the back of improvement work which was being undertaken by 
Royal Devon and Exeter Hospital (RDE) they decided as a system 
led by the western locality improvement board to undertake a 
system reset.  It was important to note that behind every delay 
there’s was a patient involved;  

(c) they had agreed a number of objectives:
 Reduce stranded patients;
 Delayed transfers of care to 35 patients per day;
 Reduce bed occupancy to 800 beds;
 Reduce length of stay in non-specialist community beds;
 Home First to see 60 – 75 patients per week;
 Reduce number of patients in intermediate care beds.

(d) they had learnt from RDE and their experiences and had a 
successful return to normal programme, they focussed 
communications on two groups: staff and partners and patients and 
their families.  The ‘Think MIU’ Campaign nudged people towards 
the MIU at the Cumberland Centre and this had been a really 
successful campaign;

(e) with regard to delayed transfers of care, it was reported that they 
had been on an improvement journey for some time and 
introduced  systematic reviews.  It was not uncommon to discharge 
up to 40 complex patients a day;

(f) the hospital to receive £26m to build radiology theatres over the 
next couple of years.  They were putting forward a second bid for 
£25m for a new emergency department and were at the top of list 
and would hear whether they have been successful in the autumn.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that –

(g) electronic prescribing was used by a lot of patients and Devon Docs 
do carry a stock of frequently prescribed medicines when visiting 
patients.  The Chair raised that electronic prescription would be 
explored at a future scrutiny meeting;

(h) they receive a twice daily update from the 111 service and have asked  
them to provide assurance on staffing levels especially at weekends.  
They were aware of the issues and have concerns that people were 
either being held up on the phone or not being able to speak to 
someone which in turn leads to a trip to the emergency department.

The Committee noted the report.

Page 2



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 25 July 2018

13. Care Quality Commission Action Plan Update  

Councillor Ian Tuffin (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care), Carole 
Burgoyne (Strategic Director for People), Anna Coles (Co-operative Strategic 
Commissioning) and Nicola Jones (NEW Devon CCG) were present for this item.  
It was reported that in December 2017, Plymouth was selected as one of 20 areas to 
undertake a comprehensive targeted review which focused on the entire health and 
social care pathway for people aged 65+ years. 

The review focussed on three specific areas of care:

 Maintaining the wellbeing of a person in their usual place of residence
 Managing people in crisis
 Stepping down people to their usual or new place of residence

Next steps they would be focussing on:

 Development of two year commissioning plan supporting the commissioning 
intentions, including:
 Implementation of Enhanced Health in Care Home model
 Launch of two more Health and Wellbeing Hubs
 Development of the Local Workforce Strategy

 Maintaining improvements in system performance

In response to questions raised, it was reported that:

(a) a Local Workforce Strategy Plan was being produced with key 
representatives aiming to address both the short and longer term 
gaps over the next 5 years;

(b) section of the plan focusses on the health and wellbeing of the 
workforce and that they would continue to build on what was already 
in place;

(c) a recent event showcasing Plymouth as part of an international 
recruitment campaign to attract doctors to city was very successful;

(d) the domiciliary care market continues to be a challenge and they have 
been acknowledged as a system that works well with partners and 
providers and have used that in how they shape the market.  
Domiciliary care providers have joined us as part of the CQC review 
and keen on innovation and looking at how we support people in 
their home;

(e) they invest in training and development and run leadership 
programmes for providers.  As part of the contractual management 
staff have to undertake safeguarding training and this was reviewed 
regularly;  

Page 3



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 25 July 2018

(f) they have adopted an approach on information sharing across a range 
of different of systems,.  However, it was difficult to have a system 
that met the needs of an individual and were working on how to 
share information across a range of systems so that professionals on 
the ground can access that individual’s information both statutory and 
non-statutory.  A major step forward was the achievement of using 
the NHS identifier across both systems.

The Committee noted the report.

14. Healthwatch Plymouth Annual Report 2017/18  

Tony Gravett, Healthwatch Deputy Manager was present for this item.  It was 
highlighted that –

(a) they worked with primary care commissioning, CCGs and GP 
surgeries and conducted an access survey around people trying to get 
an urgent appointment.  It was reported that most people were seen 
or received a GP call back within 48 hours.  The survey took place 
during winter 2017 and run again winter 2018 and the recent results 
show that it hasn’t got worse;

(b) they had undertaken a focussed piece of work on the Surgical 
Assessment Unit at the request of the hospital looking at patient 
engagement, expectations and waiting times.  We provided some 
recommendations of which some were taken forward such as a board 
explaining the process and how long you can expect to wait because 
of diagnostic testing which may be required.  A further date has been 
arranged to review the progress;

(c) they had been contacted by a patient diagnosed with Sarcoidosis, a 
rare condition which affects the lung capacity but can affect other 
parts of the body and difficult to diagnose.   The patient felt that they 
were not being treated holistically and there was no support group in 
place.  They had since set up a South West Support Group which 
now has 50 members and now understanding the range of issues this 
group were facing;

(d) they were working with the Sustainable Transformation Partnership 
alongside Healthwatch Devon and Healthwatch Torbay sitting on 
different boards and committees;

(e) they have had several meetings with the CQC under their 3 main 
strands: acute service, social care and primary care which has led us 
to both understanding each other’s roles and have provided help with 
the planning of inspections;

Page 4



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 25 July 2018

(f) there was a shortage of British sign language and interpreters for 
primary care and Derriford for a health appointments.  This had been 
partly caused by the contracted provider.  They were currently 
reviewing this and would like to bring this back to scrutiny in the 
autumn;

(g) they have been involved in the working groups with the trust around 
complex hospital discharge and looking to undertake a survey to hear 
from patients who had gone through the complex discharge pathway.  
They were also looking at the adult social care discharge process;

(h) they have been involved in STP work around children’s procurement 
services and have also have been commissioned by NEW Devon CCG 
to look at Autism Services in Plymouth.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that -

(i) it had always been difficult to make the links with minority groups but 
as part of the Health and Wellbeing Hubs had managed to engage with 
some of these groups.  The evidence so far shows that we are not 
seeing too many issues but engagement was required;

(j) they were aware of a project by the CCG to raise awareness of PPGs 
and to get PPGs more focused in supporting their surgeries;

(k) Plymouth University have been working with Healthwatch Torbay on 
a Digital Inclusion Programme which aims to educate people on how 
to use an on-line system for making a routine appointment.  Access to 
GPs remains an issue and an on-line system for making an 
appointment should not be the only method.

The Committee noted the report.

15. Integrated Commissioning Scorecard  

Following a short debate, the Chair confirmed that if any member of this committee 
wished to explore anything contained within the Integrated Commissioning 
Scorecard to contact the Chair or Democratic Support Adviser.  It was reported 
that the Chair and Vice Chair would be meeting with a Performance Officer to go 
through the scorecard at future meetings and would highlight any concerns back to 
the Committee. 

16. Integrated Finance Monitoring Report  

The Chair advised that this item together with the integrated finance monitoring 
report had been included on the agenda for information. As no issues had been 
identified for consideration prior to the meeting, no Cabinet Members or officers 
had been invited to attend.

Page 5



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 25 July 2018

17. Work Programme  

The Committee noted the work programme.

18. Tracking Resolutions  

The Committee noted that tracking resolutions which were either progressing or 
complete.

Page 6



Page 1 of 4

SUMMARY REPORT 

Plymouth Health and Adult Social Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

26th September 2018

Subject University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust Action Plan following the 
recent CQC inspection

Prepared by Julie Morgan, Head of Audit, Assurance and Effectiveness 
Approved by Greg Dix, Chief Nurse
Presented by Greg Dix, Chief Nurse

Purpose
Decision

Approval

Information

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the key findings of the 
2018 Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection report and the action being 
taken in response.

Assurance 

Corporate Objectives
Improve Quality Develop our Workforce Improve Financial Position Create Sustainable Future



Executive Summary 
University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust was inspected by the CQC in April – May 2018. This 
involved an inspection of the following core services alongside a Trustwide Well-Led inspection:

 Urgent and Emergency Services;
 Medical Care;
 Surgery;
 Maternity;
 Outpatients; and
 Diagnostic Imaging.

Overall we have been rated again as Requires Improvement:

Page 1



Page 2 of 4

Change to ratings
Safe and responsive remain as requires improvement, but effective and well-led dropped by 
one rating to requires improvement. 

However, the Trust has maintained the rating of ‘Outstanding’ for Caring. Staff were witnessed 
delivering kind and compassionate care, even in times of increased pressure (the site was 
escalated to OPEL 4 during the inspection).

The rating reduction for Well-Led relates to:
 The Trust’s failure to meet almost all national targets or standards for treating patients. 
 Although there had been actions taken and advancements made around improving 

culture, there were several significant problems to be addressed.

Key themes within the Effective domain which led to a rating reduction are:
 Not all staff had received an appraisal in the last year.
 Patients were re-attending ED in higher numbers than the national average.
 The management of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards was not consistent

Warning Notices
The Trust has received two Warning Notices, one for Pharmacy and one for Diagnostic 
Imaging. 

Significant improvement is required to ensure that patients suspected of having cancer have 
timely access to initial assessment, test results and diagnosis in diagnostic imaging.

Significant improvement is required to ensure that systems and processes for safely managing 
medicines are operating correctly both within the pharmacy services and across the Trust, and 
are effectively governed so that people are given the medicines they need, when they need 
them and in a safe way. 

We are required to make these improvements by Friday 26 October 2018. The key work 

Page 2



Page 3 of 4

streams to address these areas of concern had already started before receipt of the report, and 
in a number of cases had started before the inspection itself. 

Outstanding Practice
The report recognised many areas of outstanding practice including:

 The Trust had outstanding results of significantly low levels of both clostridium difficile 
and MRSA hospital attributable infections, and significant reductions in MSSA and E. 
coli infections in the bloodstream. There had been a significant reduction in urinary-
catheter infections and no wards had been closed in the year 2017/18 for Norovirus.

 There was an outstanding commitment and range of activities to engage at a Trust-wide 
level with people who used the services.

 The Trust has a group of dedicated, caring and special individuals who gave up their 
time to volunteer to support the Trust, patients and carers. They are a credit to 
themselves and the Trust.

 Additional training had been provided to staff to enable patients undergoing an 
oesophagectomy to be transferred straight from surgery to the ward rather than the high 
dependency unit. 

 The rheumatology department used patient reported outcomes in which patients 
suffering from inflammatory arthritis reported their symptoms to the hospital 
electronically. The clinicians then collated this, reviewed it and used the system to 
monitor stable patients or called them in for review.

 The succession planning for leadership roles through the off-rotational expert role within 
the midwifery service provided an opportunity for those wishing to progress to build 
knowledge and skills in a structured and supportive environment.

Trustwide themes for improvement 
 Address and resolve the remaining issues with staff and staff groups who do not feel 

valued and supported. 
 Ensure that Deprivation of Liberty Safeguard applications are fully understood.
 Address and resolve the issue of unrecognised or unaddressed risks in the pharmacy 

and diagnostic imaging teams connected with patient safety, staff pressures, 
performance, and governance failings.

 Work with stakeholders and commissioners to address the failure to meet almost all the 
national targets or standards for patient care. This includes most significantly the cancer 
standards and the failure of meet diagnostic standards.

Action Plan
An Action Plan has been developed in response to the Quality Report which addresses the 
‘Must Do’ and the ‘Should Do’ areas for improvement; this includes the Warning Notices. A 
copy of the Action Plan is appended at Annex 1. 11% of the actions have already been 
completed.

The Action Plan will be translated into an Action Plan monitoring report which includes key 
outcome metrics to enable us to clearly measure and monitor our progress.

Delivery of the completed Action Plan is subject to a process of internal and external monitoring 
and reporting. Progress against the actions required to address the two warning notices is 
being reviewed weekly. Delivery of the remainder of the Action Plan is being overseen by a 
CQC Post Inspection Project Group monthly. Ongoing assurance will be reported internally to 
Safety and Quality Committee at each meeting and externally to the CQC, NEW Devon Clinical 
Commissioning Group and to NHS Improvement until completion.

Any concerns with lack of delivery of actions or lack of desired impact of the actions will be 
escalated to Trust Management Executive and Trust Board as required.

Page 3



Page 4 of 4

Quality Impact Assessment
Failure to comply with the Health and Social Care Act 2008 results in the provision of services 
to patients that fails to meet essential standards of quality and safety.

Financial Impact Assessment
Failure to maintain compliance may incur financial penalties as part of any regulatory action 
taken by the CQC.

Regulatory Impact Assessment
Failure to comply with the Health and Social Care Act 2008 may result in the issuing of a 
warning notice, imposition of a condition of registration, suspension or cancellation of 
registration, or under criminal law, a caution or prosecution.

Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment
Any equality and diversity issues identified in the report will be addressed in our action plan.

Environment & Sustainability Impact Assessment
Not applicable.

Conclusion and Recommendations
Monthly updates of progress against the Action Plan will be undertaken with the first external 
reports of progress planned for the end of September 2018 for the two warning notices and end 
of October 2018 for the remainder of the Action Plan. 

It is recommended that the Committee takes assurance from the progress that we have started 
to make and our plans to make further improvement.

Page 4



CQC Action Plan

2018

Greg Dix Project Ref: v1.1

Julie Morgan Date: 13/09/2018

25 50 75 100

1.1 G Safe MUST DO

Urgently progress the redesign of the emergency department 

to ensure there is adequate space to care for patients safely 

and that patient needs are met.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1.HM Treasury approval of capital monies required 

for the progression of the written  Strategic Outline 

Case.

2. Full project management to deliver strategic plan. 

Project Board to be developed.

Capital Project - see business 

case 

Planned outcome

Sufficient space to accommodate the 

current numbers of patients attending the 

Department: inclusive of resus and 

paediatric capacity. 

Infection control standards met through 

reduction in clutter. 

Improved privacy and dignity.

Security arrangement for paediatric area 

meets requirements.

Ongoing Assurance

Trust Management Executive.

Trust Board.

Care Group Board: Oversee progression of 

improvement, escalating to corporate level 

that which is not within the care group 

management team's gift to resolve.

Service line business pillar.

Redacted 31/03/2023

1.2 G Safe MUST DO Provide sufficient equipment to monitor patients at all times.
Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Project plan and manage the expansion of the 

resus capacity into majors once minors has been 

relocated to provide a step down monitored area.

2. Purchase or arrange short term loan via Medical 

Equipment Library of essential mobile observation 

equipment for those patients held in the central area 

when crowded.

Capital expenditure cost to be 

determined by the Planning 

Team.

Planned outcome

Reduce the need to locate patients in the 

central corridor.

Essential equipment will be readily available 

to monitor patients held in the central ED 

area when the department is crowded. 

Ongoing Assurance

Trust Management Executive.

Trust Board.

Service line governance pillar to confirm the 

action has been completed and how.

Redacted 01/12/2018

1.3 G Safe MUST DO
Ensure patients are observed, or at least have the means to 

call for assistance, when waiting outside X-ray.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Install fixed alarm call bells in the waiting area 

outside ED imaging department.

2. Collaborate with Imaging to write a Standard 

Operating Procedure (SOP) detailing roles and 

responsibilities between ED and ED Imaging for 

observing and monitoring patients.

3. Scope ability to revise the department's 

fundamentals of care or Matrons audit to enable 

differentiation of auditing observations for patients 

who are allocated cubicles  and patients not 

allocated cubicles/bays in Majors area.

Quote pending from Estates 

department.

Planned outcome

Patients will be able to summon help when 

placed in the waiting area outside the X-ray 

rooms. 

Ongoing Assurance

Service line governance pillar to review and 

approve the SOP. 

Monitor compliance locally within service 

line, via Matron and Ward Manager activity. 

Reporting from Meridian audits for ED will 

confirm the level of assurance. 

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.4 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure all equipment is serviced as required, and put in 

place appropriate monitoring systems to provide oversight of 

equipment servicing.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Medical 

Director

MEMS action:

1. Implement new medical devices database with 

service scheduling and accumulate data for 

reporting. This is linked to the RFID project (and 

Scan4Safety), which will enable better tracing of 

medical devices for maintenance.

2. Increase capacity in Clinical Engineering’s 

Technical Inspector role which carries out  routine 

testing of medical devices.

Department Action: Revise department 

fundamentals of care audit to monitor equipment 

service dates: equipment in daily use and equipment 

not in daily use.

Database already purchased 

(£10,500 for first year, £5,200 

per year thereafter).

RFID project still to be 

purchased, but approved in 

principle (£200k for first year, 

£60k each for second and third 

years)

Additional capacity funded by 

increased income from new 

contracts.

Planned outcome

Medical devices servicing is all within date, 

indicated by the service date label. 

Ongoing Assurance

Reporting from new medical devices 

database will give assurance of 

compliance.

Monitor compliance locally within service 

line, via Matron and Ward Manager activity. 

Reporting from Meridian fundamentals of 

care for ED will confirm the level of 

assurance. 

Redacted

Database goes live Nov 

2018. Accumulated 

annual data available 

Nov 2019.

RFID project planned to 

be implemented during 

2019.

Additional Technical 

Inspector recruitment 

planned for Autumn 

2018.

Local action 31/12/2018

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

Project Title:

Programme:

Senior Responsible Owner (SRO):

Project Lead:

Urgent and Emergency

ACTION PLAN

Page 1

P
age 5

P
age 1 of 



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

1.5 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure patients have regular observations completed and 

documented, with easy to recognise trigger points for 

increased regularity of observations.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Medical 

Director

Introduction and pilot of NEWS 2 started on 1/8/18.

Process and intervention changes to be made as 

part of a continuous PDSA project; with Service 

Improvement support. 

None

Planned outcome

To improve patient safety and experience of 

care, minimise the risk of patients 

deteriorating without being seen. Promote 

individualised person centred care related 

to the frequency of observations required. 

Ongoing Assurance

Quality Improvement Committee will 

oversee the introduction of NEWS2. 

Service line governance pillar will record 

local improvement. 

Redacted

31/10/2018

Quality Improvement 

work will be ongoing.

1.6 G Effective MUST DO

Ensure patients presenting with possible sepsis are 

recognised, started on a treatment pathway and 

administered antibiotics within 60 minutes.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Medical 

Director

1. Continuous prospective audit of all cases 

presenting with severe sepsis with recurrent PDSA 

of interventions to improve to 90%.

2. Introduce NEWS2 with specific focus on 

improving sepsis care and management. 

None

Planned Outcome

To achieve 90% compliance. 

Ongoing Assurance

Audit and report monthly to QIC.

Collecting screening and time to ABX data.

Quarterly summary report to CCG and 

national CQUIN team.

Redacted

1.Ongoing 

2. 31/10/2018

1.7 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure the data reported in relation to time to initial 

assessment is an accurate record from arrival at the 

emergency department, not using the ambulance service’s 

observations.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Continue with process change as part of a recurrent 

PDSA improvement cycle relating to the FLIC 

initiative; with Service Improvement support. None

Planned Outcome

With the inception of FLIC inaccuracies will 

be eradicated ambulance handover times 

improved.

 

Ongoing Assurance

A&E quality indicator data sets reporting 

into the ED Delivery board.

Data fed to NHSI for external oversight. 

Service line business pillar.

Redacted

This is part of a Quality 

Improvement programme 

so is therefore ongoing

1.8 G Safe MUST DO

Urgently review nursing and medical staffing numbers to 

ensure there are always sufficient numbers on duty to keep 

patients safe.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief Nurse / 

Medical 

Director

1.Undertake a staffing review as part of an external 

review - completed.

2.Take action on recommendations made within the 

external review.

3. Paediatric area to be incorporated in to the level 

12 paediatric nurse rostering practice - completed. 

4.Agree and sign off the escalation policy across the 

Trust.

Cost pressure 

Planned Outcome

To successfully recruit to the  agreed 

uplifted establishment. 

To improve timeliness of safety checks 

during periods of escalation in activity.  

Ongoing Assurance

Strategic Command for final approval of 

establishment review and present at HMSC 

/ CME. 

Monitor delivery of recruitment plan via the 

A&E Delivery Board.

Service line business pillar

Redacted 30/04/2019
Also inherent in external review 

recommendations. See 1.12.

1.9 G Safe MUST DO
Ensure medicines are always stored securely to prevent 

unauthorised access.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Review and improve current process and 

compliance with storage of medicines. 

2. A  secure drug prep area is to be an integral 

feature of the department's reconfiguration works.  

To be determined 

Planned Outcome

A) Safe storage of medicines in line with 

Trust policy.  

B) Medicines cupboards to be locked when 

not in use to prevent unauthorised access. 

Ongoing Assurance

Medicines Utilisation and Assurance 

Committee

ED Business pillar.

Monitor compliance locally within service 

line, via Matron and Ward Manager activity. 

Reporting from Matrons' full environment 

audit for ED (Meridian system)  will confirm 

the level of assurance. Safe Storage of 

Medicines Audits.

Redacted

1. 01/10/2018

2. 31/03/2023

03/09/2018 Current monitoring 

practice is for Duty band 7  to 

undertake checks as part of a 

daily 07:30 inspection. The 

Matrons' full audit (meridian) 

requires a check on locked 

medicines cupboards. 

Page 2

P
age 6



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

1.10 G Caring MUST DO
Ensure the privacy and dignity of patients is always 

maintained.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1.Progress the redesign of the emergency 

department to ensure that there is adequate space 

to care for patients safely and that patient needs are 

met.

2. Agree/sign off the ED escalation policy, to include 

the Trust's response for appropriate additional 

staffing to manage risks to patients.

Capital Project - see business 

case

Planned Outcome

Sufficient space to accommodate the 

current numbers of patients attending the 

Department and thereby improve privacy 

and dignity.

Sufficient numbers of staff to respond to 

patients' needs.

Ongoing Assurance

Strategic Command for final approval of 

escalation policy and present at HMSC / 

CME. 

Service line Governance pillar to monitor 

concerns / Datix / complaints / patient 

feedback for ongoing improvement.

Care Group Board: Oversee progression of 

improvement, escalating to corporate level 

that which is not within the Care Group 

management team's gift to resolve

Patient Experience Committee (PLACE 

inspection). 

Redacted

1. 31/03/2023

2. 31/10/2018

1.11 G Responsive MUST DO

Put in place appropriate escalation processes that ensure a 

timely response to supporting the emergency department to 

keep patients safe and improve patient flow.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1. Agree/sign off the ED escalation policy, to include 

the Trust's response for appropriate additional 

staffing to manage risks to patients. Policy to reflect 

the capability of the Trust's existing workforce to 

respond. 

2. Successfully recruit to the  agreed uplifted 

establishment.

None

Planned Outcome 

Reduce the requirement to require Trust 

response during escalation, by use of own 

establishment.

Improved responsiveness for additional 

support during periods of escalation. 

Ongoing Assurance

Strategic Command for final approval of 

escalation policy and present at HMSC / 

CME. 

Service line Governance pillar to monitor 

concerns / Datix / complaints for ongoing 

improvement 

Care Group Board: Oversee progression of 

improvement, escalating to corporate level 

that which is not within the Care Group 

management team's gift to resolve.

Redacted 30/11/2018

1.12 G Well Led MUST DO

Ensure an external review takes place as soon as possible 

to identify the risks in the department and then take the 

actions recommended to reduce them.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

External review completed.

Take actions to address identified risks: in progress.

None

Planned Outcome

Eliminate, substitute or fully mitigate risks 

related to patient care arising from staffing, 

environmental and resource constraints. 

Ongoing Assurance

Service Line business pillar.

Care Group Board: Monitor progression of 

improvement, escalating to corporate level 

that which is not within the Care Group 

management team's gift to resolve.

Hot Floor Steering Group.

ED Delivery Board.

Redacted 30/04/2019

1.13 G Safe SHOULD DO
Ensure all staff are up-to-date with mandatory and 

safeguarding training.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

People

1. Corporate remit: All staff that require level 2 

safeguarding to be booked onto the relevant e-

learning course to complete when their current 

training expires.

2. Service line manager to produce annual forward 

planner detailing protected  time for named medical 

staff to undertake all e-learning requirements, as 

part of their PA time. 

Matron to oversee  production of an annual forward 

planner detailing protected  time for named nursing 

staff to undertake all e-learning requirements and 

embed this into rostering practice. Traceable 

reasons to be inherent for non 

attendance/compliance.

None

Planned Outcome

Service line monthly compliance to be at or 

above the desired 95% Trust compliance 

but at least at or above the Trust tolerance 

of 85%.

Ongoing Assurance

Via monthly internal service line and Care 

Group performance meetings, review and 

scrutinise mandatory training compliance 

trends. Identify barriers and set actions and 

support solutions. 

Via the Care Group Board: Oversee 

progression of solutions identified: 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve.

Redacted 31/10/2018

1.14 G Safe SHOULD DO
Ensure the kitchen in the clinical decision unit is secure when 

unattended to prevent patients gaining access.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

Reconfigure the Clinical Decision Unit to relocate the 

kitchen within the department; security features to 

be inherent in design.  

To be determined 

Planned Outcome

Access to the kitchen restricted to 

authorised staff only. 

Ongoing Assurance

Monitored via service line governance pillar.

Redacted 31/10/2018
Estates work in progress since 

August 2018 

Page 3

P
age 7



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

1.15 G Safe SHOULD DO

Repair or replace the flooring in the clinical decision unit 

toilets/shower rooms to enable effective cleaning and 

minimise infection control risks.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

Submit new works request to assess, replace or 

repair the floor.
To be determined 

Planned Outcome

Trip hazard removed and environment 

optimised to prevent infections.

Ongoing Assurance

Monitored via service line governance pillar.

Redacted 31/10/2018

1.16 G Safe SHOULD DO
Review the security arrangements for the paediatric 

department to prevent unauthorised entry and exit. 

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

1. Create modular extension to paediatric area; 

ensuring security features are inherent in design.

2. Engage with the Trust Security Team to review 

security requirements within the current footprint, 

including secure access, CCTV monitoring and 

electrical safety.

To be determined 

Planned outcome

Security arrangements to meet national 

guidelines for paediatric emergency 

department 

Ongoing Assurance

Service line business and governance 

pillars.

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.17 G Safe SHOULD DO
Ensure children in the paediatric department do not have 

access to electrical sockets.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

1. Create modular extension to paediatric area; 

ensuring safety features of electrical sockets are 

inherent in the design, e.g. height of electrical 

sockets.

2. Engage with Trust Estates Team to review the 

requirement for electrical sockets in the existing 

footprint.

3. Long Term: Progress the redesign of the 

emergency department.

To be determined 

Planned outcome

Meet IET Wiring Regulations - 

BS7671:2008 (2015), so that electrical 

socket outlets in the paediatric area have 

shutters and preferably be of a type 

complying with BS1363.

Ongoing Assurance

Service line business and governance 

pillars.

Redacted 31/12/2018

04/09/2018 Reminder that 

protective electrical socket 

inserts were removed as part of 

an NHS Estates and Facilities 

alert issued June 2016. 

1.18 G Safe SHOULD DO
Provide training and/or guidance to reception staff that 

enables them to recognise ‘red flag’ symptoms.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

People

Undertake a scoping exercise that includes the 

following hierarchy:

-  Ascertain what other Trusts' practice is around 

this issue.

- Explore  the professional scope of practice and 

patient safety considerations in relation to providing 

training and/or guidance to reception staff that 

enables them to recognise ‘red flag’ symptoms. 

- Create appropriate list of 'red flags'.  

- Produce Standard Operating Procedure that builds 

safeguards into decision making steps 

commensurate to staff job descriptions and their 

professional and legal boundaries. 

Action to incorporate  the Minor Injury Units.

None

Planned Outcome

Timely clinical response to changing risks in 

people in the main waiting area who are 

awaiting triage.

Ongoing Assurance

Service line governance pillar to review and 

approve proposed practice. 

Service line reporting via the Care Group 

Risk and Assurance Meeting: annual 

assurance report.  

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.19 G Responsive SHOULD DO

Consider how patients arriving by ambulance can be 

protected from the weather while being transferred to the 

department. 

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

1. Review Care Group risk register. Due to 

reconfiguration of paeds and resus plus proposed 

rebuild, there is unlikely to be a timely resolution to 

this issue in the immediate future.

2. Implement process change  as part of a recurrent 

PDSA improvement cycle relating to the FLIC 

initiative; with service improvement support. 

3. Long term: Subject to securing the Treasury 

capital funds, progress the redesign of the 

emergency department.

To be determined 

Planned Outcome

An ambition inherent in the PDSA of the 

FLIC initiative is to reduce ambulance 

waiting times wherever practicable. 

Ongoing Assurance

Service line business and governance 

pillars, escalating to Care Group issues of 

concern. 

Via the Care Group Board: Oversee 

progression of solutions identified: 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve.

Redacted

Risk register: 01/10/2018

FLIC: this is part of a 

Quality Improvement 

programme so is 

ongoing.

Redesign: 31/03/2023

1.20 G Safe SHOULD DO
Make sure clinical waste bins are emptied before becoming 

over-full.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Review the service level agreement with hotel 

services to ensure that there is the ability to flex the 

service provided according to Trust escalation 

status. 

2. Consider including in the Trust Escalation Policy. None

Planned Outcome

Waste bins are emptied when they are two-

thirds full and at intervals commensurate to 

the busyness of the department and do not 

become overfull. 

Ongoing Assurance

Matrons environment audit.

Monitor compliance locally via Matrons and 

Ward Managers activity.

Redacted 31/10/2018

1.21 X Safe SHOULD DO

Consider how patients can be safely transferred across the 

road from the helipad when security staff are not present to 

stop the traffic.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

Contingency plan in place using the Indigo staff if 

security staff are otherwise engaged - completed.

None

Planned Outcome

Controlled and fully mitigated risk related to  

collision with traffic or members of the 

public when transferring patients from the 

helipad to the emergency department.

Ongoing Assurance

Via service line governance pillar, review of 

incidents, complaints, patient and public 

feedback.

Redacted 01/08/2018 Action completed 01-Aug-18

Page 4

P
age 8



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

1.22 G Safe SHOULD DO
Review the front loaded initial care (FLIC) model to ensure it 

provides appropriate timely decision-making and treatments.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Medical 

Director

Implement process changes as part of a recurrent 

PDSA improvement cycle relating to the FLIC 

initiative; with service improvement support. 

None

Planned Outcome

Augmented patient experience and clinical 

risk reduction due to appropriate timely 

decision-making and treatments.

Ongoing Assurance

Via service line governance process  

monitor for themes and learning related to 

excellence and areas for improvement: 

incidents, complaints and other patient 

feedback mechanisms.

Redacted

This is part of a Quality 

Improvement programme 

so is therefore ongoing

1.23 G Well Led SHOULD DO
Review the security arrangements for storing patient records 

in the clinical decision unit.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

Reset the expected practice and discipline around 

keeping patient records:

-  in folders at the foot of the patient’s bed, ensuring 

only essential nursing records e.g. observations, 

drug charts and risk assessments are accessible 

and kept together.

- medical records are filed complete and locked in a 

secure dedicate notes trolley when not in use.

None

Planned Outcome

Compliance with information governance 

mandates.

Compliance with the Trust's Health records 

policy ensuring that notes are in a good 

physical condition, that the folder is robust 

and that all relevant documentation is filed 

and stored securely. 

Ongoing Assurance

Matron's environment audit.

Monitor compliance locally via Matrons and 

Ward Managers activity.

Service line governance pillar to have 

assurance around health records practice. 

Redacted 31/10/2018

1.24 G Safe SHOULD DO

Make sure incident reporting, learning and feedback is given 

sufficient priority to encourage improved incident reporting 

from staff.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Review the current PA time for the clinical 

governance lead.

2. Review the division of labour, roles and 

responsibilities among the service line's clinical, 

management and administrative support teams.

3. Implement PDSA approach related to incident 

reporting in conjunction with the Medical 

Assessment Unit: producing a  standardised format 

for reporting recurring high volume themes related to 

incidents within the Datix reporting system. 

4. Scope the feasibility of developing a block review 

feature within  the Datix system for an agreed type 

of  incident (external incidents) with support from the 

Head of Quality Governance.

None

Planned Outcome

Best use is being made of available time, 

and resource, to meet current expectations 

around quality governance, e.g. reporting, 

reviewing and acting on incident reports. 

Improved time management of high volume 

incident reporting: final approvals to be 

within Trust target of 5 cases (tolerance 10 

cases). 

Staff will report incidents in line with Trust 

policy and expectations to a standard that 

enhances the review and feedback 

process. 

Ongoing Assurance

Via monthly service line governance pillar to 

scrutinise  trends.  Identify barriers to 

improved incident reporting and 

management; and support solutions. 

Via monthly service line performance 

review, scrutinise compliance trends as 

recorded on the service line dashboard. 

Identify barriers and support solutions. 

Redacted 31/01/2019

05/09/2018  Project related to 

secretarial support for  

governance meetings started, 

overseen by the Service Line 

Support Manager and Care 

Group Quality Manager.

1.25 G Safe SHOULD DO
Make sure allergy information is recorded on all relevant 

paperwork.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Medical 

Director

1. Undertake awareness campaign related to 

managing and recording allergy status. 

2. Scope the reconfiguring of the Fundamentals of 

Care audit in ED to include a Multidisciplinary focus. 

This would aim to include a question related to 

clinical and nursing record keeping with regards to 

allergy information. 

None

Planned Outcome

Clinical risk reduction related to patients’ 

allergies not being recognised, leading to 

safe administration of medicines.

Ongoing Assurance

Monitor compliance locally via Matrons and 

Ward Managers activity.

Reconfigured audit to provide assurance. 

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.26 G Safe SHOULD DO
Ensure staff always clean their hands between patient 

contacts.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Undertake an awareness campaign related to 

decontaminating hands including resources and 

standards expected during periods of escalation 

when patients are being placed in the central 

corridor. 

2. Procure as department stock individual hand gel 

dispensers with clips for staff to carry and use 

during periods of escalation. 

None

Planned Outcome

Optimise the opportunity for patients to 

receive care from staff who can 

decontaminate their hands immediately 

before and after  episodes  of direct contact 

or care; where contact with bodily fluid is 

not an inherent aspect of care.

Ongoing Assurance

Hand hygiene audit as published on the 

balanced score card and monitored via the  

service line governance meeting.

Redacted 31/12/2018

Page 5

P
age 9



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

1.27 G Effective SHOULD DO

Make sure patients waiting in the department for long periods 

are not left without access to drinks and food, where 

appropriate.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Review the service level agreement with hotel 

services, ensuring there is the ability to flex the 

service provided according to Trust escalation 

status. 

2. Consider including in the Trust Escalation Policy. 

3. Revise Fundamentals of Care audit to include 

whether the patient has access to fluids and been 

offered food. 

None

Planned Outcome

Patient experience of care enhanced.

Clinical risk reduction related to hydration 

and nutrition.

Ongoing Assurance

Fundamentals of care audit.

Monitor compliance locally via Matrons and 

Ward Managers activity.

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.28 G Effective SHOULD DO
Record patients’ pain scores routinely and make sure pain 

relief is provided promptly when required.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. With support from Service Improvement progress 

the current PDSA test change of  NEWS2 within the 

department  to  recognise the frequency of 

observations required on a patient by patient basis 

depending on clinical presentation. 

2. Long Term: Progress the redesign of the 

emergency department to eliminate the need to 

place patients in the central corridor during 

crowding.

None

Planned Outcome

Patient experience of care enhanced

Clinical risk reduction due to patients 

receiving improved pain management. 

 

Ongoing Assurance

Fundamentals of care audit.

Monitor compliance locally via Matrons and 

Ward Managers activity.

Review themes arising from patient 

feedback at service line governance pillar 

forum.

Oversight of NEWS 2 via the Quality 

Improvement Committee

Redacted

NEWS2: 31/12/2018

Redesign: 31/03/2023

1.29 X Effective SHOULD DO

Continue to participate in relevant audits to monitor and 

improve patient outcomes through consistent compliance 

with national standards.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Medical 

Director

Participation in national and local audit programmes 

continues and outputs feed via service line 

governance process.

None

Planned Outcome

Incremental improvements towards patients  

receiving the most appropriate care in 

accordance with national guidance.

Ongoing Assurance

Present and review audit findings via 

service line governance pillar; escalating 

any issue to Care Group that is not within 

the gift of the service to resolve locally. 

Redacted Complete 31-Aug-18

1.30 X Effective SHOULD DO Provide annual appraisals for all staff.
Urgent & 

Emergency

Director of 

People
Introduce process of forward planning  overseen by 

the Service Line Support Manager (completed).

None

Planned Outcome

Invest in and value our staff to improve well-

being, job satisfaction and retention.  Staff 

receive the appropriate training and support 

to undertake their roles to a high standard.

Ongoing Assurance

Review service line dashboard for 

compliance via local service line and care 

group performance reviews.

Redacted 30/09/2018 06-Sep-18

1.31 G Effective SHOULD DO
Ensure staff working in resuscitation as part of a team wear 

the correct tabards to help with role identification.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Medical 

Director

Internal professional standard to be written outlining 

the requirement to wear the correct labelled tabards 

to help with role identification during Trauma care. 

None

Planned Outcome

Delivery of safe trauma care in resus area.

Ongoing Assurance

Approve  the professional standard via the 

Service line Governance pillar.
Redacted 30/09/2018

1.32 G Effective SHOULD DO
Review how patients can be better supported to manage and 

support their own healthcare.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Engage with Patient Experience Manager to 

review the range of discharge information provided.

2. Review how to ensure easy access to 

promotional materials within the department, e.g. 

leaflets, electronic adverts. 
None

Planned Outcome

Patients are supported  to make decisions 

that enable them to manage their own 

healthcare or signpost them to support 

services; where this is their choice.

Ongoing Assurance

Review themes arising from patient 

feedback at Service line Governance 

meeting 

Redacted 31/01/2019

Page 6

P
age 10



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

1.33 G Effective SHOULD DO
Consider providing nursing staff the skills required to 

undertake mental capacity assessments.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Preferred action is to increase uptake in medical 

staff  trained to undertake mental capacity 

assessments. 

2. Matron and Head of Nursing to scope the 

feasibility of nursing staff of an appropriate seniority 

to support completion of mental capacity 

assessments: factoring in professional scope of 

practice.

None

Planned Outcome

Patient experience of care enhanced.

Clinical risk reduction due to patients 

having Mental capacity assessments 

completed in a timely way and treatment 

started; where this is deemed necessary.

Ongoing Assurance

Subject to scoping, review and approve via 

nursing governance process

Service line governance pillar to monitor 

progression. 

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.34 G Responsive SHOULD DO
Provide patients requiring the toilet with appropriate facilities 

without undue delay.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Increase in establishment across all disciplines 

approved. Recruit to establishment. 

2. Reinvigorate intentional rounding format

3. Long Term: progress the redesign of the 

emergency department to improve access to toilet 

facilities and eliminate delays.

None

Planned Outcome

There is an expectation that once 

vacancies are fully recruited into the 

responsiveness to patients' basic care 

needs will improve. 

Patient experience of care enhanced in 

terms of privacy and dignity. 

80% compliance with intentional rounding.

Ongoing Assurance

Privacy and Dignity Topic Compliance 

Assessment report to Quality Assurance 

Committee

Review themes arising from patient 

feedback at service line governance 

meeting 

Redacted
1 & 2. 31/12/2018

3. 31/03/2023

1.35 G Caring SHOULD DO
Keep patients in the corridor up-to-date with their care and 

treatment plans.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Engage with the Patient Experience Manager to 

review a range of options: consider seeking patient 

feedback on solutions. 

2. Review intentional round template: include update 

on patient's awareness of their care plan.

None

Planned Outcome

Patient experience of care is enhanced in 

terms of knowledge related to their  

pathway of care through ED. 

Ongoing Assurance

Review themes arising from patient 

feedback at service line governance 

meeting.

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.36 G Responsive SHOULD DO
Communicate current estimated waiting times to patients 

arriving at the department.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Obtain a quote for a wall mounted screen in waiting 

areas (Main, minors and paediatric areas) to display 

wait times, this must be able to be an automated 

system.
To be determined 

Planned Outcome

Patient experience of care is enhanced in 

terms of improved communication relating 

to waiting times.

Ongoing Assurance

Review themes arising from patient 

feedback at Service line Governance 

meeting.

Redacted 31/12/2018

1.37 G Responsive SHOULD DO
Look to make the environment more suitable for patients with 

dementia.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Replenish dementia resources (dementia box).

2. Design in dementia friendly features as part of the 

department's interim reconfiguration in majors and 

minors areas: consideration to be given to dementia 

friendly colours, materials, signage and a centrally 

located multiface clock. 

To be determined 

Planned Outcome 

Patient experience of care enhanced 

through application of The King's Fund 

environmental design principles to  support  

people with dementia in unfamiliar 

buildings.

Ongoing Assurance

Review themes arising from patient 

feedback at Service line Governance 

meeting.

PLACE inspection report.

Redacted

1. 30/09/2018

 

2. 31/03/2019

1.38 G Well Led SHOULD DO

Agree and record a clear vision for the emergency 

department, and produce a strategy that enables the vision 

to be achieved.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

The department has a clear vision contained in each 

governance pillar and the Strategic Outline Case for 

the service.  

The service line's priorities are integral to the 

Medical Care Group's overarching strategy. None

Planned Outcome 

Strategic direction of the department  aligns 

to that of the Trust and wider STP.

Ongoing Assurance

Oversight and support by ED Delivery 

Board. 

Oversight and support by Care Group 

Board.

Oversight and delivery by Service Line 

Business Pillar.

Redacted 31/10/2018

05/09/2018 The service line's 

operational strategy is integral to 

the Medical Care Group 

Strategy, due for ratification at 

Care Group Board Sept 2018

1.39 G Well Led SHOULD DO Improve minutes and action tracking for team meetings.
Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

1. Adopt the Medical Care Group's branded suite of 

meetings' templates and meetings' standard 

operating procedure (part of governance tool kit); 

Terms of Reference for the meeting to be written.  

2. Provide commensurate administrative support to 

the meetings; training on meetings administration to 

be provided if required. 

None

Planned Outcome 

Standard office practice principles to be 

applied to ensure archived organisational 

memory.

Ongoing Assurance

Service line assurance report to the care 

group (annual).

Redacted 31/10/2018

Page 7

P
age 11



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

1.40 G Well Led SHOULD DO

Review how the provision of psychiatric liaison services is 

monitored to ensure performance meets patients’ needs and 

improvements can be identified if needed.

Urgent & 

Emergency

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

24 hour, 7 day psychiatric liaison service is  in place.

Formalise referral reporting. 

Plan to feed into Strategic Command. 

None

Planned Outcome 

Patient experience of care is enhanced in 

terms of care pathway through ED

60 minute target to be met (time from 

referral to assessment).

Ongoing Assurance

Business Intelligence (Livewell) feeding into 

integrated team currently.

Redacted 31/10/2018

Formalisation of referral reporting 

is pending -  PDSA data quality 

issues are being resolved.

1.41 G Well Led SHOULD DO
Identify ways of obtaining feedback from the public to 

develop and improve services.

Urgent & 

Emergency
Chief Nurse

Supported by the Trust Patient Experience Manager 

write a local patient engagement strategy outlining 

approaches for seeking feedback from patients 

attending the department.

None

Planned Outcome

Enhance patients' experiences of care 

through an effective engagement strategy 

that informs service improvement.

Ongoing Assurance

Strategy to be reviewed and monitored via 

the service line governance pillar.

Service line assurance report to the Care 

Group (annual).

Redacted 31/12/2018

Redacted

2.1 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure nursing staffing levels meet the nursing 

establishment on the endoscopy unit to enable planned 

investigations can be carried out and not to hamper service 

improvement projects.

Medical Care Chief Nurse

Establishment review to be undertaken in the 

context of demand and capacity planning: including 

future workforce requirements to meet the predicted 

growth in screening and diagnostic services.

To be determined 

Planned Outcome

Enable staffing establishments to be met on 

a session by session basis, 7 days a week. 

Staffing  levels to  meet national 

requirements and standards for Endoscopy.

Ongoing Assurance

Establishment review to pass through 

review and approval processes: via the 

Care Group Board, Trust Management 

Executive and  Financial Improvement 

Group. 

Monitor progression of business case via 

Care Group Board. 

JAG accreditation.

Redacted 30/12/2018

2.2 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure that all patients are assessed for venous 

thromboembolism (VTE) as soon as possible after 

admission, or by the first consultant review and that this is re-

assessed within 24 hours in line with national guidance.

Medical Care
Medical 

Director

Scope IT solution using SALUS whiteboard with use 

of an icon tracking completion of VTE risk 

assessment. 
To be determined 

Planned Outcome

To comply with NICE CG 98. 

Service lines' monthly compliance to be at 

or above 95% Trust compliance. 

Ongoing Assurance for the Medical Care 

Group

Via monthly service line performance 

review, scrutinise compliance trends as 

recorded on workforce dashboard. Identify 

barriers and support solutions. 

Via Medical Care Group Risk and 

Assurance meeting:

a) Quarterly report from VTE lead nurse to 

care group covering the VTE Topic 

Compliance Assessment. Identify barriers 

and solutions needed to support 

improvements. 

VTE topic compliance report to Quality 

Assurance Committee.

Via the Care Group Board: Oversee 

progression of solutions identified: 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve. 

Submit Care Group Board report as 

underpinning evidence to the Trust 

Management Executive via the Medicine 

Care Group Review meeting.

Redacted 31/12/2018

Medical Care

Page 8

P
age 12



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

2.3 G Well Led MUST DO

Review processes for effective systems to scrutinise 

morbidity and mortality (M&M) data. Standardise the format 

of minutes of M&M meetings to ensure effective sharing of 

information with those who were unable to attend. Review 

and improve the format M&M data was presented to ensure 

it is transparent, and can allow for challenge.

Medical Care
Medical 

Director

1.Process of quarterly service line reporting into 

Care Group performance meeting (started May 

2018).  Service lines will submit a written summary 

report covering  mortality screening compliance, 

arrangements for conducting mortality screening, 

scrutiny of HSMR and SHMI; subject judgement 

reviews, and how the outputs of screening feed into 

Service Line governance meetings. 

2. Revise Service Line meetings' toolkit to ensure 

scrutiny of HSMR/SHMI and screening compliance 

is undertaken and recorded in the relevant forum; be 

that embedded in a clinical governance meeting or 

standalone M&M meeting.  Engage with clinical 

governance leads in design and format, as part of 

the Medical Care Group's 2018/19  governance plan 

of which  reinvigorating and revamping the clinical 

governance leads meeting forum is inherent. 

 .

None

Planned Outcome

Incremental test change approach towards 

standardisation of recorded evidence at 

service line level, that ensures there is 

scrutiny over  M&M data within the services 

that comprise the Medicine Care Group. 

Ongoing Assurance for Medical Care 

Group

Via the Medical Care Group Risk and 

Assurance meeting:

a)  On a quarterly basis produce a report on 

analysis of data supplied by the service 

lines from their performance reviews. 

Identify barriers and solutions needed to 

support improvements. 

b) Service lines to submit a sample of 

minutes as part of annual assurance 

reporting. 

Via the Medical Care Group Board: 

Oversee progression of solutions identified, 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve. 

Trust Mortality Review Panel - Presentation 

of Care Group report; utilising this forum to 

escalate for corporate support where a 

solution is not within the Care Group's gift 

to solve. 

Redacted 31/12/2018

28/08/2018 The first test of 

change of a planned 4 reviews 

covering mortality within the 

Medical Care Group  was 

undertaken in May 2018.  A draft 

report  was presented to the 

Medical Care Group risk and 

assurance meeting on 15th 

August 2018. Action plan to be 

drafted for final approval of 

report.

2.4 G Effective MUST DO
Ensure Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards are applied for in 

accordance with legal requirements.
Medical Care Chief Nurse

1. Revision to the Trust's DOLS process  to be 

undertaken by the corporate leads, to provide a 

more user friendly service at ward level - refer to 

action 7.2. 

2. Care Group to develop action once corporate 

process review and surveillance systems are 

approved and in place by the corporate lead.

None

Planned Outcome

All patients requiring Deprivation of Liberty 

Safeguards will be correctly identified and 

the process required actioned in 

accordance with legal requirements.

Ongoing Assurance for Medical Care 

Group

Trust level: Safeguarding Committee

Use of Care Group escalation framework 

once corporate revision complete and 

monitoring process known. 

Redacted 31/03/2019

2.5 G Effective MUST DO
Improve training compliance for medical staff undertaking 

mental capacity assessment.
Medical Care

Medical 

Director

1. Service Line Managers to produce annual forward 

planners outlining protected time for named medical 

staff to complete e-learning and mandatory face to 

face training relevant to the scope of their practice. 

Traceable reasons to be inherent for non 

attendance/compliance.

2.Negotiate with Workforce/Performance Manager 

the ability to determine medical staffing % 

compliance as a subset report within service line 

dashboards. 

None

Planned Outcome

Service Lines' monthly compliance to be at 

or above the desired 95% Trust compliance 

but at least at or above the Trust tolerance 

of 85%: with the same level of compliance 

for the subset of medical staff. 

Ongoing Assurance for Medical Care 

Group

Via monthly Service Line performance, 

review and scrutinise mandatory training 

compliance trends. Identify barriers and set 

actions and support solutions. 

Via the Care Group Board: Oversee 

progression of solutions identified: 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve. 

Redacted 31/10/2018

2.6 G Responsive MUST DO

Improve arrangements and work with the wider healthcare 

system to reduce delayed transfer of care. Patients who 

were medically fit for discharge were unable to leave 

hospital, which put them at risk of deconditioning and 

deterioration.

Medical Care

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

The reporting process is integrated so that issues to 

flow can be monitored and addressed system wide.  

The same approach will be applied to intermediate 

care placements and reablement.  

None

Planned Outcome

System-wide ambition that no more than 

3.5% of occupied beds will comprise 

patients experiencing delays in transfer of 

care to other provider. 

Ongoing Assurance

Daily performance reports 

Ongoing identification of themes and issues 

through patient flow meetings in acute and 

community setting - this will ensure ongoing 

attention to issues as they potentially arise.

Oversight by System Integration Board.

Redacted 31/03/2019

28/08/2018 Multi agency MDT 

patient flow meetings held daily.  

These have been used to identify 

issues and themes causing 

delays which are then resolved 

with community and 

commissioning partners.  This 

approach has been successful in 

Acute reducing delays to less 

than 3.5%. The same approach 

is now being taken to community  

delays 

Page 9

P
age 13



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

2.7 G Safe SHOULD DO 

Review the nursing establishment to ensure safe nursing 

staff levels on inpatient wards based on data collected to 

ensure this meets national guidance.

Medical Care Chief Nurse

Undertake a review into establishment covering 

nursing and care support roles;  including future 

workforce requirements to meet the predicted 

growth in specialist treatments and include a target 

turnover rate.

To be determined 

Planned Outcome

Follow national quality guidance to maintain 

patient safety within available resources on 

a shift  by shift (or session by session) 

basis, 7 days a week.  

Ongoing Assurance

Summary of review to be presented to 

Trust Board. 

Redacted 31/10/2018

2.8 G Safe SHOULD DO 

Review the level of child protection training and compliance 

for staff providing care and treatment for young adults under 

the age of 18 years.

Medical Care
Director of 

People

1. Trust level:  Trust lead to scope the suitability and 

feasibility of providing  enhanced  level 2 face to 

face training  to ensure that senior staff have a 

greater understanding than basic level 2 in child 

protection, MCA and DoLS.

2.Care Group level: Service Line Managers to 

produce annual forward planners detailing protected  

time for named medical staff to undertake face to 

face training relevant to the scope of their practice. 

Matrons to produce annual forward planners 

detailing protected time for named nursing staff to 

undertake face to face training relevant to the scope 

of their practice. Traceable reasons to be inherent 

for non attendance/compliance.

None

Planned Outcome

Service Lines' monthly compliance to be at 

or above the desired 95% Trust compliance 

but at least at or above the Trust tolerance 

of 85%. 

Ongoing Assurance

Trust level: Safeguarding Steering Group.

Care Group level: Via monthly Service Line 

performance, review and scrutinise 

mandatory training compliance trends. 

Identify barriers and set actions and 

support solutions. 

Via the Care Group Board: Oversee 

progression of solutions identified, 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve.

Redacted 31/03/2019

2.9 G Effective SHOULD DO 
Improve training compliance with Mental Capacity Act and 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.
Medical Care

Director of 

People

1. Corporate remit: All staff that require level 2 

safeguarding to be booked onto the relevant e-

learning course to complete when their current 

training expires.

2.Service Line Managers to produce annual forward 

planners detailing protected  time for named medical 

staff to undertake all e-learning requirements, as 

part of their PA time. Matrons to oversee ward 

managers production of annual forward planners 

detailing protected  time for named nursing staff to 

undertake all e-learning requirements and embed 

this into rostering practice. Traceable reasons to be 

inherent for non attendance/compliance.

None

Planned Outcome

Service Lines' monthly compliance to be at 

or above the desired 95% Trust compliance 

but at least at or above the Trust tolerance 

of 85%.

Ongoing Assurance

Via monthly Service Line performance, 

review and scrutinise mandatory training 

compliance trends. Identify barriers and set 

actions and support solutions. 

Via the Care Group Board: Oversee 

progression of solutions identified: 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve.

Redacted 31/10/2018

2.10 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Review arrangements for the safe administering of 

intravenous fluids for patients receiving haemodialysis.
Medical Care Chief Nurse

1. Dialysis machines on Mayflower ward to be 

upgraded  to online priming which allows fluid to be 

given as part of the dialysis programme, when 

required. 

2. Staff to receive training as part of the upgrade.   

3. Standard Operating Procedure to be written for 

staff to follow in the rare event that intravenous 

fluids are required in an emergency situation; 

supported by a patient group directive (PGD)

To be determined 

Planned Outcome 

Administration of intravenous fluids during 

dialysis to be compliant and  aligned to the 

practice at Estover Dialysis Unit. 

Ongoing Assurance

Service Line clinical governance meeting to 

record:

-  achievement of upgrade and confirmation 

of staff training in new feature.

-  List of staff who have received training in 

upgraded machines. 

-  Service line review and approval of SOP.

-  PGD approved via Pharmacy governance 

process. 

Redacted 31/10/2018

2.11 G Safe SHOULD DO 

Improve emergency equipment daily checks in line with 

national guidance. This was highlighted in a previous CQC 

inspection and we did not find this had been improved 

adequately.

Medical Care Chief Nurse

1. Matron Audit (Meridian) to include the need to 

escalate omissions in any aspect of environment 

safety or equipment checking. 

2. Declarations from Matrons outlining the routines 

in place within each clinical area within their remit 

related to daily emergency equipment checks. 

Standardised proforma to be designed, completed 

and submitted to the Care Group management 

team. 

3. Feedback to Care Groups via Nursing & 

Midwifery Board from annual audit undertaken by 

the Resuscitation Team.

None

Planned Outcome 

All clinical areas to provide assurance of a 

workable routine being in place to  ensure 

emergency equipment checks are 

undertaken in line with Trust policy. 

Ongoing Assurance

Monitor compliance locally via Matrons and 

Ward Managers activity.

Completed declarations relating to ward 

routines to be submitted and reviewed at 

Medicine Care Group service line 

performance reviews. 

Via Care Group risk and assurance 

meeting, review a summary report outlining 

declared process and status; hold services 

to account through action log for closing off 

any gaps.

Redacted 31/12/2018

Page 10

P
age 14



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

2.12 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Improve compliance with mandatory training for medical staff 

to meet the trust target.
Medical Care

Medical 

Director

Service Line Managers to produce annual forward 

planners outlining protected time for named medical 

staff to complete e-learning and mandatory face to 

face training relevant to the scope of their practice. 

Traceable reasons to be inherent for non 

attendance/compliance.

None

Planned Outcome 

Service Lines' monthly compliance to be at 

or above the desired 95% Trust compliance 

but at least at or above the Trust tolerance 

of 85%.

Ongoing Assurance

Via monthly Service Line performance, 

review and scrutinise mandatory training 

compliance trends. Identify barriers and set 

actions and support solutions. 

Via the Care Group Board: Oversee 

progression of solutions identified: 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve. 

Redacted 31/10/2018

2.13 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Ensure substances hazardous to health are stored in line 

with regulations.
Medical Care

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

1. Conduct awareness campaign related to safe 

storage of Actichlor Plus tablets (COSHH).

2. Obtain declarations from Service Line Managers 

confirming the presence of a COSHH cupboard 

within the sluices of their clinical areas.   

Standardised proforma to be designed, completed 

and submitted to the Care Group management 

team. 

3. Review of Matrons environment audit; to revise 

the dedicated question related to checking secure 

storage of disinfectant tablets to definitively 

evidence compliance that Actichlor Plus tablets are 

in a 'locked COSHH cupboard'.

To be determined 

Planned Outcome 

All inpatient wards to have a COSHH 

cupboard of a sufficient size to 

accommodate stock of disinfectant tablets 

for use in sluice areas. This needs to be in 

addition to  any existing COSHH cupboard 

that wards choose to have elsewhere on 

the ward containing clinical chemicals 

meeting COSHH regulations. 

Ongoing Assurance

Monitor compliance locally via Matrons and 

Ward Managers activity.

Completed declarations to be submitted 

and reviewed at Medicine Care Group 

service line performance reviews. 

Via Care Group risk and assurance 

summary report outlining declared process 

and status.

Redacted 31/12/2018

28/08/2018  Awareness 

campaign started via daily e-mail 

and Vital Signs.

2.14 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Monitor, record and audit air pressure levels in positive and 

negative air pressure rooms in line with national guidance.
Medical Care

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

1. Install analogue pressure gauges to the 2 

Bracken ward negative pressure isolation rooms A & 

B and lobby; also the following 10 negative/positive 

pressure rooms throughout the Terence Lewis 

Building.

• L4 Penrose Rm11 & 12

• L6 Torrington Rm 11 & 12

• L6 Torcross Rm 20 & 21

• L7 Clearbrook Rm H

• L7 Crownhill Rm K

• L8 Bickleigh Rm H

• L8 Braunton Rm K

2. Estates Team to create a daily check sheet to be 

used by ward staff to record the room pressures 

(once the gauges have been installed) in 

accordance with guidance.

3. Write an SOP to provide details on how to 

undertake and record the daily isolation room 

pressure checks.

To be determined 

Planned Outcome 

All wards  in the trust with air handling units 

(positive and negative pressure) to comply 

with national guidance (HBN 04-01 

supplement 1). 

Ongoing Assurance

Matrons quarterly reporting via Infection 

Prevention Sub-Committee.

Confirm completion of works; review and 

approve the planned monitoring SOP; and 

report escalation of Estates related 

concerns via Ventilation Safety Group.

Redacted 31/12/2018

2.15 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Consider more innovative ways to recruit to consultant 

vacancies in the medical care group.
Medical Care

Medical 

Director

1.Care Group Strategy to include the development 

of  robust 3-5 year workforce plans within Medicine 

Care Group services.

2. Recruitment strategy and a plan to be written with 

consideration towards:

- Baseline position;

- Review of benefits and perks for each specialty;

- Staff ambassador roles;

- Tapping into existing staffs' networks for  referral 

and recommendations;

- Targeted approach: trade press, professional 

associations and university departments;

- Overseas recruitment options to be explored;

- Review recruitment perks with existing consultants 

to retain existing staff: aim for parity in  terms and 

conditions of employment with the incentive benefits 

to recruitment drives. 

To be determined 

Planned Outcome 

Consultant numbers across services will  

meet service demands and allow sufficient 

flexibility to cope with temporary variations 

in demand.

Ongoing Assurance

Service Line business meetings.

Care Group Risk and Assurance Meeting: 

Monthly review of risk register.

Care Group Board: Oversee progression of 

recruitment strategy, escalating to 

corporate level that which is not within the 

Care Group management team's gift to 

resolve.

Redacted 30/11/2018

29/08/2018 Draft Care Group 

overarching strategy ready for 

review and approval at 

September 2018 Care Group 

Board. 

Page 11

P
age 15



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

2.16 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Review the suitability of Postbridge ward to accommodate 

inpatients and overnight.
Medical Care

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Complete risk assessment to determine suitability of 

Postbridge ward to accommodate inpatients during 

periods of operational escalation: incorporate option 

appraisal of not using Postbridge. None

Planned Outcome

Utility of Postbridge as an escalation ward 

for inpatient occupancy during periods of 

Trust escalation will  ensure patients 

receive safe care and treatment.

Ongoing Assurance

Via relevant Trust Management Executive 

forum (operational) submit the risk 

assessment  for review and approval. 

Redacted 31/10/2018

2.17 G Responsive SHOULD DO 

Improve documentation to easily identify when patients were 

moved to a different ward and document the reasons for 

doing so.

Medical Care

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1. Scope enhanced utility of an electronic solution 

(IPMS & SALUS) to enable  24/7  traceable 

recording  that identifies when patients are moved to 

a different ward and document the reasons for doing 

so. 

2. Based on the identified solution develop a 

Standard Operating Procedure

To be determined 

Planned Outcome 

Optimum use of information about patient 

moves to enhance the patient experience

Ongoing Assurance

Via relevant Trust Management Executive 

forum (operational) monitor progression of 

the scoping exercise, review and approve 

option chosen, ensuring an impact 

assessment has been inherent in the 

decision making process; 

SOP to be ratified via relevant Trust 

Management Executive forum (operational);

Monitor use of information via Patient 

Experience Committee.

Redacted 31/03/2019

2.18 G Safe SHOULD DO 

Ensure nursing care plans are individualised and hold 

sufficient information to ensure safe and effective care can 

be delivered by all staff.

Medical Care Chief Nurse

Nursing and Midwifery Strategic Priorities for 2018-

2021 to include a review and renewal of all nursing 

care plan documentation. 

None

Planned Outcome

Improved Patient Experience and 

effectiveness  through individualised patient 

care planning.

Ongoing Assurance

Review and approval via Nursing and 

Midwifery Operational Committee

Redacted 31/03/2019

2.19 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Improve documentation of when liquid medicines are opened 

to ensure they are not administered when they have expired.

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy
Chief Nurse

1. Review Medicines Management Policy to ensure 

that liquid medicines are included.

2. Ensure that liquid medicines are part of the 

medicines management audit.

None

Planned Outcome 

Safe and in date administration of oral liquid 

medication in line with Trust Medicines 

Management policy.

Ongoing Assurance

Revised process to be approved and 

monitored via Medicines Utilisation 

Assurance Committee.

Redacted 30/11/2018

2.20 G Effective SHOULD DO 

Review clinical guidelines on the trust intranet to ensure they 

are all current and reflect the most up-to-date national 

guidance.

Medical Care
Medical 

Director

Service Lines' Clinical Governance Leads to 

oversee review of clinical guidelines where the 

document owner sits within their service and ensure 

these are acted upon through their departmental 

clinical governance structures and submitted to the 

Audit Assurance and Effectiveness team for 

publication on Trustnet. 

None

Planned Outcome

All clinical guidelines, where the document 

owner sits within Medicine Care Group will 

be up to date by 31/12/2018

Ongoing Assurance

Quarterly reporting into Medical Care Group 

forums on the number of up to date 

guidelines: report generated from Audit 

Assurance and Effectiveness Team. 

Record evidence of clinical guideline 

updating at Service Lines' local governance 

meetings.

Via Care Group level clinical governance 

leads meeting review progress on updated 

guidelines. 

Care Group Board: Oversee progression of 

improvement, escalating to corporate level 

that which is not within the care group 

management team's gift to resolve.  

Redacted 31/01/2019

28/08/2018  Care Group  Director 

has e-mailed service line leads to 

request updating of clinical 

guidelines where the document 

owner sits within their service 

and to ensure these are acted 

upon through their departmental 

clinical governance structures.

Page 12

P
age 16



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

2.21 G Safe SHOULD DO 
Ensure awareness of the sepsis care bundle is rolled out to 

all inpatient wards and departments.
Medical Care

Medical 

Director

1. Quality Improvement programme agreed with the 

CCG in place; concentrating on admission and 

assessment areas.             

2. Educational programme - Turbo teaching, 

posters; investigate any case where severe sepsis 

has resulted in severe decline or death. 

3. NEWS2 will go live in MAU areas as of 

September 2018, and remaining inpatient areas by 

December 2018  to increase likelihood of sepsis 

identifications

None

Planned Outcome

• Improve screening of patients presenting 

with severe sepsis to 90% by quarter 4 in 

all emergency admission areas, ED MAU 

SAU Paediatrics

• To administer antibiotics within 1 hour of 

possible diagnosis of severe sepsis in 

greater than 90% of patients in all 

admission areas by Quarter 4

• To ensure NEWS 2 scoring assessment 

takes place for >90% of patients with 

severe sepsis in ED by quarter 4 

• To ensure the appropriate 3 day review of 

antibiotics in >90% of patients identified 

with severe sepsis in all emergency 

admission areas

• To develop capability of staff in 

understanding of sepsis and sepsis 

management in five ward areas where 

patients are most likely to have or develop 

signs of severe sepsis. 

o Monkswell

o Brent

o Shaugh

o Stonehouse

o Hexworthy

Ongoing Assurance

Monthly reporting via Quality Improvement 

Committee

Quarterly CQUIN reporting to Clinical 

Commissioning Group.

Redacted

31/03/2019

Quality Improvement 

programme will be 

ongoing.

2.22 G Effective SHOULD DO 

Improve documentation from treatment escalation plans to 

ensure these are completed to demonstrate patients’

choices are considered.

Medical Care
Medical 

Director

Corporate Level: 1. Implement awareness campaign 

related to roll out of version 11 TEP forms 

(completed).

2. Ensure that all resuscitation training programmes 

have TEP education as integral to the curriculum 

(completed).

3. Undertake monthly audit  of TEP via emergency 

call data collection (ongoing).

4. Continue ongoing bi-annual hospital audits of TEP 

forms  via Meridian system undertaken by the Resus 

and End of Life (EoL) teams with results sent to 

Care Groups for action and further audit as 

appropriate (audit due by 31/10/2018). 

5. Review at End of Life Committee and 

Resuscitation Committee the provision of guidance 

on a percentage achievement related to accurate 

completion of TEP forms; and how this will be 

formally monitored. 

Care Group: 

6. Clinical Governance Leads to lead on TEP 

improvement plan for their services based on 

baseline audit results (October 2018 audit).

None

Planned Outcome: Improved completion 

of TEP forms in line with guidance provided 

from corporate forum. 

Ongoing Assurance

Corporate remit: Audit reports to EoL 

committee and Topic Compliance 

Assessment to Quality Assurance 

Committee.

Within Care Group: Record evidence of 

TEP coverage and local action planning at 

Service Lines' local governance meeting.

Via Care Group level clinical governance 

leads meeting review findings of corporate 

audit results and  devise local action plan 

for improvement.

Care Group Board: Oversee progression of 

improvement, escalating to corporate level 

that which is not within the Care Group 

management team's gift to resolve.  

Redacted 31/03/2019

29/08/2018 All new Doctors have 

been briefed on version 11 TEP 

completion (August 2018).

2.23 G Safe SHOULD DO 

Develop a standard operating procedure to provide guidance 

for staff about the safe use of escalation areas including safe 

staffing levels.

Medical Care

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Review the Trust's escalation framework to ensure 

that a standard operating procedure is an inherent 

feature that:

-  ensures suitable patients and maximum numbers 

of patients are transferred to the designated area.

-   provides guidance and a checklist for staff about 

the safe use of the designated area  including safe 

staffing levels.

None

Planned Outcome

Utility of changing the use of any area to 

accommodate inpatient care during periods 

of Trust escalation will  ensure patients 

receive safe care and treatment.

Traceable action to be held in electronic 

format.

Ongoing Assurance

Via relevant Trust Management Executive 

forum (operational) ratify the revised 

escalation framework with associated SOP 

inherent.

Redacted 31/10/2018

2.24 G Well Led SHOULD DO 
Ensure regular scheduled clinical governance meetings are 

held and attended.
Medical Care

Medical 

Director

Clinical Governance Leads meetings to be held 

within Medicine Care Group  bi-monthly.

Revised arrangement to start October 2018.

None

Planned Outcome

Clinical Governance leads are supported to 

deliver their remit in line with their Job 

Description.

Ongoing Assurance

Terms of Reference

Forward planner, detailing standard 

agenda. 

Meetings minutes and action log.

Attendance list.

Redacted 31/10/2018

Page 13

P
age 17



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

2.25 G Effective SHOULD DO 

Evaluate training needs for training in mental health 

conditions to enhance staff’s understanding and ability to 

care for patients admitted to the acute trust and who suffer 

from mental health conditions.

Medical Care Chief Nurse

1. Scope out the minimum level of mental health 

training for all clinical staff through collaboration with 

Livewell Liaison Psychiatry colleagues and by 

contacting Mark Radford, Director of Nursing NHSI 

for any guidance. Draft a minimum standard for UHP 

to adopt and a proposal for how this can be 

actioned.

2. Actions to be implemented and  governed by 

Care Groups. 

  

None

Planned Outcome 

Defined minimum standard of training  

supported by plan for delivery.

Ongoing Assurance

Safeguarding Committee.

Mental Health Topic Compliance 

Assessment Report to Quality Assurance 

Committee. 

Use of Care Group escalation framework 

once training requirements have been 

developed.

Redacted
1. 31/12/2018

2. 31/03/2019

We have developed stronger 

links on behalf of UHP from an 

external perspective.

The Deputy Chief Nurse meets 

with commissioners monthly 

around Liaison psychiatry and 

CAMHS services to ensure we 

are getting access to the best 

services and support with the 

available monies and to ensure 

good evaluation of services 

against this.

We were successful in our bid for 

funding for Beyond Places of 

Safety which means we will be 

having estates work done to 

provide more assessment and 

review space near ED to see MH 

patients in an acute crisis.

We completed a mock CQC 

inspection at the end of 2017 and 

presented the findings and action 

plan to TME. We are working on 

full delivery of the action plan.

We are completing our first PCA 

in order to determine our 

progress and compliance against 

the NCEPOD report ‘Treat as 

one’ publication. 

Redacted

3.1.1 G Responsive MUST DO

Ensure referral to treatment time for incomplete pathways 

are improved and improve the cancer waiting times for the 

percentage of people waiting less than 62 days from urgent 

GP referral to first definitive treatment.

Surgery

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Ensure achievement of the improvement trajectory 

as agreed with NHSI.

Maintain incomplete pathways and reduce 52 week 

waits by 50% compared to March 2018 position in 

line with national planning guidance and 

commissioned levels of activity

If demand is above 

commissioned levels then risk 

of additional financial spend.

To achieve agreed trajectory. Monitored 

daily, reported to Board monthly and 

reviewed at IDM with NHSI bi-monthly.

Redacted 31/03/2019

3.1.2 G See 3.1.1 See 3.1.1 See 3.1.1 Surgery

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

The Care Group will continue with Project Persist to 

ensure that all available Theatre time is optimised to 

an 85% opportunity and the Service Line Managers 

will report to  the Care Group Manager around 

individual efficiencies within the Service Lines at the 

Care Group Board meetings.

If demand is above 

commissioned levels then risk 

of additional financial spend.

The outcome measure is the comparison 

between the March 2018 and March 2019 

RTT position.       

This will be monitored and reported via the 

following measures; A daily report on 52 

week waiters and greater than 40 week 

waiters, Weekly RTT reviews at Speciality 

level, Weekly reporting for Operation 

Persist all feeding into monthly reporting to 

TME via Planning Delivery Unit (PDU) 

structure. 

Redacted 31/03/2019

3.2 G Safe SHOULD DO
Improve mandatory and safeguarding training levels so that 

they achieve the trust’s target.
Surgery

Director of 

People

Review and monitor delivery of all service line action 

plans.

Care Group to review all trajectories with Cluster 

Managers during the Monthly HR Performance 

Review Meetings and monthly Clinical Governance 

Performance Review meetings. Individual 

performance addressed via 1-1 meetings and 

outcomes escalated at Service Line Clinical 

governance meetings. 

None

Compliance with mandatory training across 

all staff groups.                                               

Ongoing monitoring through Care Group 

reviews and service line reviews.

Redacted 31/05/2019

3.3 G Safe SHOULD DO
Ensure cross infection processes are followed in all ward and 

theatre areas.
Surgery Chief Nurse

Base line review of current implementation of 

standards at ward level to be conducted in 

Cardiothoracic Theatres and Moorgate ward using 

the Infection Prevention and Control Team ward 

round review.

Action plans for improvement to be agreed if these 

clinical areas are found to be unsatisfactory.

None

Clinical areas to comply with Trust policy for 

Infection Prevention and Control.                     

Satisfactory review conducted by Infection 

Prevention and Control Team and monthly 

review of data presented via the Balanced 

Score Card.

Redacted 31/12/2018

3.4 G Safe SHOULD DO
Ensure products deemed as hazardous to health are locked 

away and not accessible to patients.
Surgery Chief Nurse

Baseline review of current storage practice at ward 

and department level to be undertaken by the ward 

or department Manager.

Action plans to be developed for non compliance.

None

Hazardous Items to be stored correctly in 

all Clinical Areas. 

Service Line Managers to include this as 

part of the monthly governance meetings 

and report compliance as part of their 

quarterly assurance report to  the Care 

Group

Redacted 31/03/2019

3.5 G Safe SHOULD DO

Improve compliance with 95% of venous thromboembolism 

(VTE) (blood clot) assessments being carried out for patients 

in line with national guidance.

Surgery
Medical 

Director

Baseline review of current implementation of 

standards at ward level to be provided by Clinical 

Nurse Specialist (CNS) for VTE.

Action plans for non compliance to be drafted where 

required.

None

Satisfactory compliance with VTE Risk 

Assessments. 

CNS for VTE to report quarterly on 

performance to the Care Group 

Governance Meeting.

Redacted 31/03/2019

Surgery

Page 14

P
age 18



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

3.6 G Safe SHOULD DO

Improve compliance with the WHO checklist in the 

specialities where the 95% compliance target was not being 

achieved.

Surgery
Medical 

Director

Continue reviews of non compliance in regular 

reporting to Theatres Clinical Governance 

Committee. Plan in progress to move to an 

electronic theatre reporting system to improve data 

quality.                                                                                      
None

All specialities to achieve a minimum of 

95% compliance.                                              

Monitoring via Theatres Clinical 

Governance Committee who will feedback 

to individual clinicians and escalate to Care 

Group Governance Meetings.

Redacted 31/03/2019

3.7 G Safe SHOULD DO
Continue to improve staffing levels and ensure they match 

the acuity of patients on all wards.
Surgery Chief Nurse

Corporate Establishment review in progress. The 

Surgical Care Group will interrogate leavers exit 

interview data and monitor via Clinical Governance 

Meetings.

None

Ongoing safe staffing as evidenced by Safe 

Care.  

SOP for level 1 areas to reflect national 

trends. Leaver trends to be reported to the 

Care Group via the quarterly assurance 

reports by the Service Lines. Care Group 

Clinical Governance Meeting to review 

leaver data.

Redacted 31/03/2019

3.8 G Effective SHOULD DO
Improve appraisal levels so that they achieve the trust’s 

target.
Surgery

Director of 

People

Review and monitor delivery of all service line action 

plans.

Care Group to review all trajectories with Cluster 

Managers during the Monthly HR Performance 

Review Meetings and monthly Clinical Governance 

Performance Review meetings. Individual 

performance addressed via 1-1 meetings and 

outcomes escalated at Service Line Clinical 

governance meetings. 

None

Compliance with the Trust target.                                            

Monitor through Care Group monthly 

reviews and service line reviews.

Redacted 31/03/2019

3.9 G Effective SHOULD DO
Undertake sepsis audits on all wards where sepsis might 

occur.
Surgery

Medical 

Director

The incidence of sepsis on surgical wards is 

infrequent. Work has therefore focussed on the key 

areas where the risks are higher - see action 2.21.  

See 2.21 See 2.21 Redacted See 2.21

3.10 G Effective SHOULD DO

Improve mental capacity and deprivation of liberty training 

levels for medical staff and nursing staff so they achieve the 

trust's target.

Surgery Chief Nurse

Link in with trust wide programs to support and 

educate staff. 

Support the action to ensure mandatory updates 

undertaken.

None

Compliance with Trust target.                                 

Monitoring of incidents via Care Group 

Governance meeting report and compliance 

with training via Service Line Performance 

Reviews.

Redacted 31/03/2019

3.11 G Responsive SHOULD DO
Clearly display information directing patients on how to make 

a complaint.
Surgery Chief Nurse

All Matrons to review current processes in clinical 

areas and ensure that information is easily 

accessible.

None

Information on how to make a complaint will 

be accessible. Matrons to report issues by 

exception.

Redacted 31/12/2018

3.12 G Responsive SHOULD DO
Ensure all areas used in times of escalation protect patient’s 

dignity and meet their needs.
Surgery

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Review operating procedures for converting 

temporary areas to inpatient areas, including 

baseline assessments for prospective areas. Ensure 

staff are inducted into the area and are aware of 

mechanisms for escalation.

None

Privacy and dignity of patients will be 

protected when the Trust is escalated.                           

The Care Group will engage with escalation 

plans via the Winter Planning meetings to 

ensure adequate preparation of designated 

escalation areas.

Redacted 31/10/2018

3.13 G Well Led SHOULD DO
Continue to improve theatre utilisation and reduce the 

number of theatres cancelled.
Surgery

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Continue roll out of Operation Persist which aims to 

improve theatre utilisation through a focus on Pre-

assessment, Scheduling, Start times and Team 

Work with continuous evaluation and communication 

to permeate theatre culture towards maximising 

efficiency safely.

None

Optimise theatre efficiency to an 85% 

opportunity. 

Monitor through Project Board and then to 

TME via PDU Board.

Redacted

Quality Improvement 

Project ongoing with 

potential to roll out to 

other areas - no end 

date.

Ongoing

3.14 G Well Led SHOULD DO
Improve the number of risks on the risk register actioned 

within the agreed timescales.
Surgery Chief Nurse

The current process of review via monthly Care 

Group Governance meetings and feedback to 

Service Line Managers to continue. Process to be 

actively managed with Service Line Managers to 

improve compliance.

None

A reduction in the number of Risks with 

actions which are overdue.                   

Review monthly at Care Group Governance 

meeting.

Redacted 31/03/2019 Ongoing

3.15 G Well Led SHOULD DO
Standardise the format of minutes of mortality and morbidity 

meetings to ensure effective sharing of information.
Surgery

Medical 

Director

Link in with the Mortality Review Group work  to 

standardise  HSMR and SHMI triggers to prompt a 

review of mortality trends. Information will be 

available to the  Service Lines via service line  

dashboards. The group have agreed a set of 

principles when reviewing the data that will require a 

response from the Care Group / Service Line if.

1. The Service Line Lower Confidence Limits show 

us as an outlier compared with similar services. This 

is consistent with the Service Line dashboards.

2. 5 consecutive data points are showing a negative 

trend.

3. NHSI alert received in relation to any patient 

group.

Individual service line review at governance 

meetings to feed up to the Care Group Board and 

Governance Leads meetings to facilitate shared 

learning. Also feeding back to the Morbidity and 

Mortality Review Group to facilitate trust wide 

learning when relevant.

M&M key findings will be added as an agenda item 

to the Governance Leads minuted monthly Meeting 

with the Care Group Director which will ensure the 

key learnings are shared.

None

Mortality review findings to be reported in to 

Service Line Governance Meetings to 

formalise reporting and facilitate shared 

learning with the Care Group and Trust 

wide.                              

Review at Care Group Board. We will 

capture any work that the service line have 

conducted in reviewing the deaths so there 

is a central record of investigations.

The Care Groups will be requested to 

attend the Mortality Review Group to 

update the Group on

• What we have learned both good and 

what needs improvement.

• What action has been taken.

Redacted 31/03/2019

Maternity 

Page 15

P
age 19



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

4.1 G Safe MUST DO
Ensure all staff in maternity have in date mandatory training, 

including emergency procedures and safeguarding.
Maternity

Director of 

People

1. 'Making Every Conversation Count' training to be 

included and documented.                                      

2. Additional training sessions to be put in place for 

Evacuation of pool training. Train additional B7 

coordinators 'train the trainers' to ease burden on 

the room and be able to train more staff.                                                               

3. Split the data into midwifery, clinical and admin 

personnel for accuracy of interpretation and 

understanding any problems.

None

Ability to provide data to confirm that 

trained staff are available on every shift.                 

Data split by staff groups on dashboard.

To be reviewed at the monthly performance 

service line meetings.

Redacted 30/11/2018

4.2 G Safe MUST DO

Review the systems and processes for ensuring all staff, 

including medical staff who do not attend mandatory training 

are followed up and training is completed.

Maternity
Director of 

People

Bi monthly meeting with HR, Matrons, Practice 

Development Midwife and Cluster Manager to 

review all non attenders. Escalation to Director of 

Midwifery, Service Line Clinical Director and Care 

Group Manager respectively for non attenders. 

None

Review data on 1:1's with Matrons and 

SLM's on staff members that have DNA'd 

training sessions.

Redacted 31/10/2018

4.3.1 G Safe MUST DO

Review the systems and processes to ensure all equipment 

has been maintained, checked and cleaned ready for clinical 

use, including equipment for use in emergencies.

Maternity
Medical 

Director

MEMS action:

1. Implement new medical devices database with 

service scheduling and accumulate data for 

reporting. This is linked to the RFID project (and 

Scan4Safety), which will enable better tracing of 

medical devices for maintenance.

2. Increase capacity in Clinical Engineering’s 

Technical Inspector role which carries out  routine 

testing of medical devices.

Database already purchased 

(£10,500 for first year, £5,200 

per year thereafter).

RFID project still to be 

purchased, but approved in 

principle (£200k for first year, 

£60k each for second and third 

years)

Additional capacity funded by 

increased income from new 

contracts.

Planned outcome is that medical devices 

servicing is all within date, indicated by the 

service date label. Reporting from new 

medical devices database will give 

assurance of compliance.

Redacted

Database goes live Nov 

2018. Accumulated 

annual data available 

Nov 2019.

2. RFID project planned 

to be implemented during 

2019.

3. Additional Technical 

Inspector recruitment 

planned for Autumn 

2018.

4.3.2 G See 4.3.1 See 4.3.1 See 4.3.1 Maternity
Medical 

Director

Service Line action:

1. Revise Maintenance Checklist.                                                       

2. Formalise and Monitor handover between band 2 

staff.                     

3. Implement Audit programme of cleaning and 

present and monitor through Clinical Effectiveness 

Committee.

None

All equipment will be cleaned, maintained 

and fit for purpose. Matrons and Serco 

audits to demonstrate compliance.         

This will be reported through to the Matrons 

and reviewed monthly at CEC.

Redacted 31/10/2018

4.4 G Safe MUST DO

Review the systems and processes for the safe 

management of medicines, including replenishment and 

storage, both within the hospital and in community.

Maternity Chief Nurse

1. Review Homebirth team medicine storage. 

2. Add safe storage of medicines to homebirth team 

induction. 

3. Implement process for checking of drugs in 

enhanced observation room.

None

All staff will be aware of correct storage of 

medicines. 

Routine daily check list and spot check of 

Homebirth kit will provide ongoing evidence 

of compliance.

Redacted 30/11/2018

4.5 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure the process for approval to work under Patient Group 

Directions are consistent with trust policy and national 

guidance.

Maternity Chief Nurse

Circulate PGD Trust policy to all staff ensuring that 

all staff sign stating they will adhere to Trust policy.  

A PGD midwifery specific package will be developed 

and added to mandatory training with a test 

demonstrating knowledge and competence.  

PGD discussion during PROMPt training.

None

All staff will be compliant with local policy.

Prescription chart and notes audit to be 

completed tri-annually and reviewed by 

Maternity risk team and audit lead midwife.

Redacted 30/11/2018

4.6 G Safe MUST DO
Consistently achieve internal targets for the use and 

completion of the WHO safety checklist.
Maternity

Medical 

Director

Complete audit of WHO safety checklists.

All failed forms to go to the Theatre lead for 

investigation;  accurate fails are sent to the Patient 

Safety Trust Lead and to all those involved in the 

theatre teams for response.

Cluster Manager to discuss with GN regarding 

keeping target at optimum level and will meet with 

GN on a monthly basis to review problem areas.

None

Achievement of internal target.

Reviewed at both Theatre and Obstetrics 

governance meetings.

Redacted 31/10/2018
Current data for Month 4 is green 

at 98%.

4.7 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure patient information is protected in clinical areas and 

records are amalgamated and stored securely following 

discharge from the service.

Maternity

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

1. Clear backlog of notes - complete.          

2. Communicate the importance of completing 

paperwork in a timely way to Midwifery teams.                                                                 

3. Weekly audit to be completed by Admin 

management team on notes in the office for 

amalgamation.

4.  Review current storage of notes and ensure that 

notes are stored securely.

None

Notes will be up to date in being sent back 

to Bush Park.          

Regular checks are in place to ensure that 

the process of retrieving and filing of paper 

notes is within current guidelines.        

Redacted 31/10/2018

4.8 X Well Led MUST DO

Review governance, risk management, and performance 

processes to ensure threats and defects in the service are 

visible and escalated appropriately.

Maternity Chief Nurse

Appoint Care Group Quality Manager to ensure that 

risks are considered outside of Care Group 

Management Team for appropriate check and 

challenge. 

None Quality Manager in place. Redacted 03/09/2108 Completed 03-Sep-18

4.9 G Well Led MUST DO

Comply with the trust process for the introduction of new 

roles and practices to ensure the associated risks are fully 

understood.

Maternity
Director of 

People

1. Re visit Band 5 Nurses Orientation Programme 

and ensure competencies for all aspects of role are 

achieved and maintained and that no aspect of role 

is outside of registration or training.            

2.  Implement specific supervision with Band 5 

nurses by PMA  to ensure differences in roles and 

responsibilities are understood between nursing and 

midwifery staff.

None

Nurses to have clearly defined boundaries 

and responsibilities. Assessed annually 

through appraisal.

Redacted 30/11/2018

Page 16

P
age 20



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

4.10 G Effective MUST DO

Improve the process for document control to ensure policies 

and procedures are reviewed considering national guidance, 

before the time of expiry, and only the most recent version is 

available to staff.

Maternity
Medical 

Director

1. Review of all guidelines 6 months prior to expiry. 

2. Historic and rolling review of version control to be 

revisited to align with review schedule. 
None

No paper copies of documents present in 

clinical areas. All available guidelines to be 

current. 

Ward Managers to provide CEC meeting 

with assurance that this information is not 

kept in lever arch folders in ward areas. 

Reiterate at ward meetings. Audit, 

Assurance & Effectiveness Team provide 

monthly assurance report. This can be 

presented at CEC.

Redacted 31/03/2019

4.11 G Effective MUST DO

Ensure all nurses and midwives delivering care within the 

high dependency unit have been assessed as competent to 

care for the critically ill woman.

Maternity
Director of 

People

1. Change the name of the room to 'Escalated 

Observation Area'  

2.  Ensure staff are aware that this is NOT an HDU 

area.

3. Band 7 coordinators to routinely assess that staff 

working within area feel able to undertake and 

escalate appropriately in the context of enhanced 

observations.                                               4. 

Ensure that documentation for patients who are 

admitted to Enhanced Observation Area   reflects 

the clinical guidelines for that area.                                           

None

All staff can provide midwifery care in the 

Enhanced Observation Area.  They provide 

regular observations on the patients but 

with more frequency than patients in the 

other level zero beds.  Audit the MEOWS 

of patients who have been cared for in the 

Enhanced Observation Area;  this is 

incorporated into the compliance monitoring 

that is within the new guidelines.

Redacted 31/10/2018

4.12 G Safe MUST DO

Ensure Modified Early Obstetric Warning Score (MEOWS) 

charts are used consistently and escalation occurs in 

accordance with policy.

Maternity Chief Nurse Audit MEOWS charts of inpatients every 6 months. None

All patients have MEOWS chart completed 

and escalated where appropriate.

Monitoring of audit through Clinical 

Effectiveness Committee. 

Redacted 30/11/2018

4.13 G Safe MUST DO

Review the process for classifying serious incidents and 

external reporting to ensure that all incidents meeting the 

criteria are reported appropriately. Ensure backlog of actions 

for serious incidents is completed.

Maternity Chief Nurse

1. Implement LMS agreement for Pan-Devon 

Definition of Serious Incidents within Maternity.

2. Backlog to be cleared.

None
Ratified agreement through LMS. 

Clearance of backlog.
Redacted 30/11/2018

4.14 G Safe SHOULD DO

Consider how to make morning multi-disciplinary handover 

on delivery suite more efficient and if the two handovers can 

be merged to maximise a coordinated approach. Consider 

how actions and information resulting from these handovers 

is captured.

Maternity
Medical 

Director

1. Joint review of handover by Maternity Matron and 

Service Line Director.

2. Electronic or paper capture of handover to be 

commenced.

None

Presentation of feasibility of aligning shift 

start times to Care Group Management 

Team.

Audit of compliance of handover 

documentation through Clinical 

Effectiveness Committee.

Redacted 31/01/2019

4.15 X Well Led SHOULD DO

Consider implementing a quality manager role, in line with 

other care groups in the organisation, to support risk 

management, governance, and oversight from patient to 

board.

Maternity Chief Nurse
Quality Manager appointed and commenced in post 

August 2018.
None Not Applicable. Redacted 31/08/2018 Completed. 31-Aug-18

4.16 G Responsive SHOULD DO
Continue with the plans already initiated for a midwifery-led 

service to comply with national guidance.
Maternity Chief Nurse

Continue to raise awareness through the LMS, 

Board Reporting and the Risk Register of inequality 

with the backdrop of the financial position.

None
Annual Board report.

Local Maternity System.
Redacted Ongoing 

4.17 G Well Led SHOULD DO
Expand the use of clinical audit and other improvement tools 

to proactively measure service delivery.
Maternity

Medical 

Director

1. Band 6 support Midwife (0.4 wte) to support Audit 

schedule.

2. Formal allocation of audits. 

3. Reporting of audits and monitoring of schedule 

through Maternity Clinical Effectiveness Committee 

and in Maternity Governance Report through Quality 

Assurance Committee. 

0.4 WTE of band 6 

Band 6 to be in post and leading on formal 

allocation of audits.

Audit schedule compliance and monitoring 

of findings through Clinical Effectiveness 

Committee and Trust visualisation in 

Governance report through Quality 

Assurance Committee. 

Redacted 30/11/2018

4.18 G Safe SHOULD DO

Evaluate the roster to identify if midwifery staff shortages are 

disparate across the service and disproportionally affect one 

part of the pregnancy.

Maternity
Director of 

People

Rosters will be reviewed and, if required, staff will be 

re-allocated to balance areas.
None

Monitoring through acuity data and 

information in local and trust staffing report. 
Redacted 31/10/2018

Staff are fully rotational and can 

work in any area and respond 

accordingly to the peaks and 

troughs of the service. 

4.19 G Safe SHOULD DO
A risk assessment for the safe storage of medical gases 

should always be available to staff.
Maternity

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Risk assessment to be completed and shared with 

staff.
None

Staff will have access to the safe storage of 

medical gases SOP.
Redacted 31/10/2018

4.20 G Safe SHOULD DO

Review the process for ensuring hazardous chemicals are 

consistently locked away and not accessible to unauthorised 

persons.

Maternity

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Review the process for ensuring hazardous 

chemicals are consistently locked away and not 

accessible to unauthorised persons.

None

All hazardous chemicals will be stored in an 

area with restricted access. This will be 

audited across the area by the Matrons.
Redacted 30/11/2018

4.21 G Well Led SHOULD DO

Consider how to increase information technology in the 

community, and specifically access by community midwives 

to maternity guidance and blood results.

Maternity

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

Business case for the solution to be repeated  and 

placed on Risk Register if not financially or physically 

achievable.

TBC

Staff working in community setting will have 

access to IT regardless of their place of 

work. If this is not achievable, the risk will 

be placed on the Risk Register.

Redacted 31/12/2018

RedactedOutpatients

Page 17

P
age 21



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

5.1 G Safe MUST DO

Make sure all staff within the outpatient departments have 

undertaken mandatory training updates in line with trust 

policy.

Outpatients
Director of 

People

Service lines are responsible for ensuring that their 

staff are up to date with training.

All OP staff are included in the Care Groups monthly 

dashboard and performance meetings and part of 

the Care Group Performance Action plan.

For Medicine Care Group: Service Line Managers to 

produce annual forward planners detailing protected  

time for named medical staff to undertake all e-

learning requirements, as part of their PA time. 

Matrons to oversee ward managers production of 

annual forward planners detailing protected  time for 

named nursing staff to undertake all e-learning 

requirements and embed this into rostering practice. 

Traceable reasons to be inherent for non 

attendance/compliance.

None

Planned Outcome

Service Lines' monthly compliance to be at 

or above the desired 95% Trust compliance 

but at least at or above the Trust tolerance 

of 85%.

Ongoing Assurance

Via monthly Service Line performance, 

review and scrutinise mandatory training 

compliance trends. Identify barriers and set 

actions and support solutions. 

Via the Care Group (Board): Oversee 

progression of solutions identified: 

escalating to corporate level that which is 

not within the Care Group management 

team's gift to resolve.

Redacted 31/10/2018

5.2 G Responsive MUST DO
Bring the current outpatient referral to treatment time target 

into line with targets.
Outpatients

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Ensure achievement of the improvement trajectory 

as agreed with NHSI.

Maintain incomplete pathways and reduce 52 week 

waits by 50% compared to March 2018 position in 

line with national planning guidance and 

commissioned levels of activity

If demand is above 

commissioned levels then risk 

of additional financial spend.

To achieve agreed trajectory. Monitored 

daily, reported to Board monthly and 

reviewed at IDM with NHSI bi-monthly.

Redacted 31/03/2019

5.3 G Responsive MUST DO
Bring the current cancer wait targets, especially for two-week 

wait and 62-day pathways into line with targets.
Outpatients

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

To achieve the 62 day standard trajectory as agree 

with NHSI and achieve the 2ww standard. (detailed 

action plan in place)

To achieve agreed trajectory. Monitored 

daily, reported to TME bi-weekly, Board 

monthly and reviewed at IDM with NHSI bi-

monthly. Monthly reporting to  Devon Wide 

Cancer Strategic & Operational Delivery 

Group

Redacted 31/03/2019

5.4 G Safe SHOULD DO

Make sure all staff working in clinical outpatient areas are 

‘bare below the elbow’ in line with best practice and trust 

policy.

Outpatients

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Reiteration to all outpatient areas via daily email. 

Completion of Spot Checks.

Department Assurance Assessment Framework 

(DAAF) to be completed Areas/service to produce 

action plans to improve any deficiencies. 

Not Applicable

Compliance with Policy.

Audit and spot checks with feedback to 

appropriate individuals and service lines.

Redacted 31/12/2018

5.5 G Responsive SHOULD DO
Take steps to provide sufficient seating and outpatient 

waiting areas facilities for patients attending appointments.
Outpatients

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Service lines to review their waiting areas and 

submit plans to provide sufficient seating to OPD 

Board.

To be confirmed.
Improve facilities where possible.

Review progress at OPD Board.
Redacted 31/12/2018

Serious risk within Medicine Care 

Group Risk ID 5659 Risk to 

quality of patient care, staff 

experience, and organisation 

reputation, due to the quality of 

the estate. This incorporates the 

insufficient size of key OPDs 

overseen by the MCG.

5.6 G Safe SHOULD DO
Make sure patient notes are stored securely when not in use 

in outpatient clinics.
Outpatients

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Reiteration to all outpatient areas through daily 

email.

Completion of Spot Checks. 

Department Assurance Assessment Framework 

(DAAF) to be completed.

Areas/service to produce action plans to improve 

any deficiencies. 

Liaise with Vanessa Bennett in relation to the Health 

records audits that are undertaken to gain a better 

understanding of what is audited and what can be 

audited in future and increase regularity if possible.

Not Applicable
Patient notes held securely.

Review progress at OPD Board.
Redacted 31/12/2018

5.7 G Well Led SHOULD DO
Ensure that learning from any serious incidents is embedded 

within the relevant department and the wider organisation.
Outpatients

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Serious incidents are discussed, shared and 

disseminated through the Care Group and Service 

Lines Clinical Governance Structure.

Appropriate learning will be shared across the Trust 

via the OPD Board. Develop reports for Trustwide 

review of serious incidents in OPD areas with the 

aim for OPD Performance and Governance to 

understand trends and themes.

Not Applicable

Learning will be embedded.

Where SIRI's in OPD have occurred, 

service line to present RCA/SBAR and 

actions at OPD Board.

Redacted 31/12/2018

5.8 G Responsive SHOULD DO

Keep patients informed of delays in outpatient clinics making 

sure staff communicate effectively with patients with 

disabilities and sensory loss.

Outpatients

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Gain understanding of ways to improve 

communication using different types of technology 

and understanding best practice across Trust at 

OPD Forum.     

Implement identified actions across OPD areas.

To be confirmed.

Friends and Family Test reduction in 

concerns raised in relation to delays in OPD 

clinics as well as informal and formal 

complaints.

Redacted 31/12/2018

Redacted

6.1.1

G

Safe / 

Responsive / 

Well Led

MUST DO

Address and resolve the issue of unrecognised or 

unaddressed risks in the diagnostic imaging teams 

connected with patient safety, staff pressures, performance, 

and governance failings.

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Risk Owners to review and update risks on the Risk 

Register.
None

All serious & moderate risks should be 

reviewed monthly. Overview by Imaging 

Governance Manager. Escalation to 

Service Line Manager and Clinical 

Governance Lead. Risk Register will be 

routinely reviewed at the Imaging Board.

Redacted 28/09/2018 Completed. 17/08/2018

Diagnostic Imaging

Page 18

P
age 22



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

6.1.2

G See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Updated Risk Register to be reviewed by Care 

Group Manager CSS and Project Director
None

All serious & moderate risks should be 

reviewed monthly. Overview by Imaging 

Governance Manager. Escalation to 

Service Line Manager and Clinical 

Governance Lead. Risk Register will be 

routinely reviewed at the Imaging Board.

Redacted 28/09/2018 In progress

6.1.3

G See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Governance Manager to review Never Event actions 

to establish current status of implementation. 

Summary report to be produced for Project Director.

None

All outstanding actions will be reviewed.  

Overview by Imaging Governance 

Manager. Escalation to Service Line 

Manager and Clinical Governance Lead.

Redacted 28/09/2018

6.1.4

G See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Governance Manager to review implementation of 

Safer Surgery Checklist. 

Summary report to be produced for Project Director.

None

Overview by Imaging Governance 

Manager. Escalation to Service Line 

Manager and Clinical Governance Lead.

Redacted 28/09/2018

6.1.5

G See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Governance Manager to review patient improvement 

action plan to establish current status of 

implementation. 

Summary report to be produced for Project Director.

None

All outstanding actions will be reviewed.  

Overview by Imaging Governance 

Manager. Escalation to Service Line 

Manager and Clinical Governance Lead.

Redacted 28/09/2018

6.1.6

G See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Review status of radiation protection audit plan to 

establish current status of implementation. 

Summary report to be produced for Project Director.

None

All outstanding actions will be reviewed.  

Overview by Imaging Governance 

Manager. Escalation to Service Line 

Manager and Clinical Governance Lead.

Redacted 28/09/2018

6.1.7

G See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Review all severe risks. None

All serious & moderate risks should be 

reviewed monthly. Overview by Imaging 

Governance Manager. Escalation to 

Service Line Manager and Clinical 

Governance Lead. Risk Register will be 

routinely reviewed at the Imaging Board.

Redacted 28/09/2018

6.1.8

G See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1 See 6.1.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Review all risks graded 'low'. None

All serious & moderate risks should be 

reviewed monthly. Overview by Imaging 

Governance Manager. Escalation to 

Service Line Manager and Clinical 

Governance Lead. Risk Register will be 

routinely reviewed at the Imaging Board.

Redacted 28/09/2018

6.2.1 G Responsive MUST DO

Make significant improvements to meeting the needs of 

patients in the diagnostic imaging departments in terms of 

timeliness of their appointments.

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Corporate response:

Ensure achievement of the improvement trajectory 

as agreed with NHSI.

Reduce DMO1 reportable tests > 6 week waits to 

3.4% by March 2019 (detailed action plan in place).

If demand is above 

commissioned levels then risk 

of additional financial spend.

To achieve agreed trajectory. Monitored 

daily, reported to Board monthly and 

reviewed at IDM with NHSI bi-monthly.

Redacted 31/03/2019

6.2.2 X See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Service Line response:

Develop plans to provide additional scanning 

capacity.
TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018

Completed. Plans in place and 

coming onstream to provide 

additional scanning capacity.

01-Aug-18

6.2.3 X See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Develop scanning trajectories to illustrate the 

reduction in backlog for CT, MRI & US. TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
Completed 01-Aug-18

6.2.4 X See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Develop weekly cancer WT performance tracker for 

each modality. 
TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
Completed 07-Aug-18

6.2.5 X See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Commission Admin/Booking review.
TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
Completed 07-Aug-18

6.2.6 X See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Secure funding for 2WW Co-ordinator.  TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
Completed 07-Aug-18

6.2.7 G See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Implement plans to further increase scanning 

capacity. TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
In progress

Page 19

P
age 23



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

6.2.8 G See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Update scanning trajectories based upon latest 

plans. TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
In progress

6.2.9 X See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Present proposal to increase reporting capacity to 

Exec Directors. 
TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
Proposal agreed. 04-Sep-18

6.2.10 G See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Agree proposal to increase reporting capacity with 

Consultant Radiologists. 
TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018

6.2.11 G See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Agree plan to provide protected access to beds for 

Imaging (PIU, Norfolk or Lynd).
TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
Not started

6.2.12 G See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1 See 6.2.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Secure approval for x3 additional Booking Clerk 

posts (FTC). 
TBC

To substantially reduce WT's with the aim 

of meeting national and local WT standards 

and to create sufficient operational 

contingency to enable Iagging to cope with 

increases in demand or machine downtime.

Redacted
Substantial improvement 

in WT by 26/10/2018
Not started

6.3.1

X Well Led MUST DO

Ensure the leaders within the diagnostic imaging 

departments have the capacity to lead and provide 

assurance of the quality, safety, and responsiveness within 

the service.

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Commission initial 'self assessment' of capacity 

versus responsibilities. 
TBC

Service Line Manager & Superintendant 

Radiographer to agree time that each lead 

requires and an action plan to achieve that. 

Redacted 28/09/2018 Completed 20-Aug-18

6.3.2

G See 6.3.1 See 6.3.1 See 6.3.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Service Line Manager & Superintendant 

Radiographer to identify proposals to address the 

shortfall identified via the self assessment of 

capacity versus responsibilities.. 

TBC

Service Line Manager & Superintendant 

Radiographer to agree time that each lead 

requires and an action plan to achieve that. 

Redacted 28/09/2018 In progress

6.4 G Well Led MUST DO
Support and improve the culture and wellbeing for the 

diagnostic imaging staff.

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Develop Action Plan to support and improve culture 

and wellbeing. Key actions: 

- Reinstate HR Leadership Meetings fortnightly with 

Clinical Leads w/c 03.08.18.

- Actions to support the development of Senior 

Leads.

- Implement Communication Boards.

- Ensure regular senior management Walkabouts. 

- Implement 'SCORE' in Interventional Radiology.

- Ensure that musculoskeletal risks are on the risk 

register and are being adequately managed.

TBC

Action plan in place with timescales for 

delivering improvement. 

Progress reviewed in fortnightly meetings 

between Project Director, Service Line 

Manager and HR Business Partner.

Redacted 26/10/2018 Not started

6.5.1

X Safe MUST DO

Replace imaging equipment which is beyond its ‘end of life’, 

and continue to develop and act upon in a timely way, the 

imaging capital replacement programme, to increase 

business continuity and minimise risks of harm to patients.

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Service Line Manager to review Imaging equipment 

register on the Site Development Plan. 
TBC

A comprehensive, up to date, risk assessed 

register of all Imaging equipment, prioritised 

for replacement with planned and projected 

dates for replacement. This should be co-

owned by the SL, Finance & Estates 

Redacted 28 September 2018 Completed 10-Aug-18

6.5.2

G See 6.5.1 See 6.5.1 See 6.5.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Governance Manager to cross check with Risk 

Register any equipment nearing or beyond 'end of 

life' to ensure that all such items have been risk 

assessed.

TBC

A comprehensive, up to date, risk assessed 

register of all Imaging equipment, prioritised 

for replacement with planned and projected 

dates for replacement. This should be co-

owned by the SL, Finance & Estates 

Redacted 28/09/2018 In progress

6.5.3

G See 6.5.1 See 6.5.1 See 6.5.1

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Assess/update risk and assign prioritisation for 

replacement. TBC

A comprehensive, up to date, risk assessed 

register of all Imaging equipment, prioritised 

for replacement with planned and projected 

dates for replacement. This should be co-

owned by the SL, Finance & Estates 

Redacted 28/09/2018 Not started

6.6 G Safe MUST DO
Make sure all patients of child-bearing age have the 

appropriate pregnancy checks recorded.

Diagnostic 

Imaging 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1.Assess and deliver any training & communication 

needs. 

2.Audit compliance and take appropriate action. 

None
Agreed and communicated SOP and audit 

programme in place.
Redacted 28/09/2018

SOP in place but was confusing. 

DN has written to Radiographer 

Leads asking them to confirm 

that the requirements have been 

communicated to staff.

6.7

G Safe MUST DO

Progress the e-referral system implementation to reduce 

risks to patient safety, particularly around unnecessary

exposure, and incorrect referrals.

Diagnostic 

Imaging

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1. Review e-referral risks on Risk Register.

2. Project Director to meet with Director of IM&T & 

CSS Care Group Manager  to agree next steps. 

3. Service Improvement to be commissioned to 

process map the process in ED. Next steps will be 

decided once this is complete.

TBC

A shared understanding of the risks, agreed 

mitigating action and clear next steps with 

responsibilities and timeframes.

Redacted 30/09/2018

Project Director has reviewed 

risks on the Risk Register. 

Project Director and CGM have 

met with Director of IM&T. 

Page 20

P
age 24



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

6.8 G Safe SHOULD DO 

The service needs to improve compliance rates for 

mandatory training, to ensure all staff are up to date with the 

latest practices and processes to keep patients and 

themselves safe.

Diagnostic 

Imaging

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1. Obtain list of staff with outstanding mandatory 

training.

2. Confirm course availability, ensure that staff are 

booked to attend training and have supportive 

conversations with staff where required.

None
Trust target for completion of mandatory 

training will be achieved 
Redacted 26/10/2018 Not started

6.9

G Safe SHOULD DO 

Complete paperwork associated with infection prevention 

and control and that it is appropriately countersigned by a 

senior radiographer.

Diagnostic 

Imaging

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1.Review and address existence and suitability of 

SOP. 

2.Assess and deliver any training & communication 

needs. 

3.Audit compliance and take appropriate action. 

None
Compliance with Trust Infection Control 

Policy.
Redacted 28/09/2018 Not started

6.10 G Effective SHOULD DO 
Improve compliance with audits such as the hip fracture audit 

and the trauma audit.

Diagnostic 

Imaging

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

This is assessed as part of ISAS accreditation and 

is not considered to be an issue.

Evidence  to be provided.

TBC
Confirmation of compliance with ISAS 

expectations.
Redacted 26/10/2018 Not started

6.11 G Effective SHOULD DO 
Ensure that all staff receive, annually, an up to date 

appraisal.

Diagnostic 

Imaging

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1. Obtain list of outstanding appraisals. 

2. Obtain summary of outstanding job plans for 

Service Line Clinical Director.

3. Address outstanding appraisals and job plans.

None

All outstanding appraisals will have been 

completed.

All job plans will be up to date.

Redacted 28/09/2018 In progress

6.12 G Caring SHOULD DO 

Improve privacy and dignity for patients in the diagnostic 

imaging department. Particularly in plain film X-ray, MRI and 

nuclear medicine.

Diagnostic 

Imaging

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Undertake privacy & dignity assessment and 

develop an Action Plan.
TBC

Action plan in place with timescales for 

delivering improvement. 
Redacted 28/09/2018 Not started

6.13 G Well Led SHOULD DO 
Ensure that targets set in diagnostic imaging are achievable, 

realistic, and encourage the service to improve.

Diagnostic 

Imaging

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Agree KPI's and Performance Standards. None
A comprehensive list of achievable KPI's 

which will inform performance management 
Redacted 28/09/2018

SLCD to sign off and then 

circulate for agreement to 

modality Consultant leads.

Redacted

7.1.1 G Well Led MUST DO

Address and resolve the remaining issues with staff and staff 

groups who do not feel valued and supported. Ensure that 

action is taken to address behaviour that is inconsistent with 

the values of the organisation.

Trustwide
Director of 

People

Make a Trust values commitment  statement  - set 

out a clear message from the Chief Executive about 

values, Trust commitment to truly living by them, 

commitment to action etc 

None

This action will set a clear message to staff 

about the priority and commitment to a 

positive culture and sets the landscape for 

other actions

Redacted 30/09/2018

7.1.2 G See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. Trustwide
Director of 

People

Expand and increase profile of the Your Voice 

methodology as a means of enabling staff to speak 

up. Through all leadership roles, within Care 

Groups. Require Care Groups to report on Your 

Voice sessions that have taken place and emerging 

themes to Care Group review. Key themes to be 

reviewed and followed up .

None

This action will deliver the outcome of 

increasing the number of conversations 

with staff to check-in on culture. Measured 

via Care Group review target of number of 

sessions to actual. Demonstrate actions 

taken. 

Redacted

Embedded within Care 

group review process by 

30/11/2018.

7.1.3 G See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. Trustwide
Director of 

People

Increase the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian 

numbers and publicise widely.
None

This action will widen the access to this 

support mechanism
Redacted 30/09/2018

7.1.4 G See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. Trustwide
Director of 

People

Explore the introduction of an independent raising 

concerns mechanism (Speak in Confidence) for staff 

concerns.

None

This action will provide an additional 

independent route for staff to raise 

concerns and allows anonymous reporting.

Redacted 30/11/2018

7.1.5 G See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. Trustwide
Director of 

People

Introduce a 360 degree appraisal process as part of 

leadership development.
None

This action will ensure leaders (Band 7 and 

above) receive feedback about behaviour 

and receive coaching support to address 

any areas for improvement. 

Redacted 31/03/2019

7.1.6 G See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. See 7.1.1. Trustwide
Director of 

People
Promote a top 20% Staff survey response rate. None

This action will ensure that a majority of 

staff have the opportunity to share their 

views on working in the Trust and provide 

reliable data. 

Redacted 31/12/2018

Trustwide

Page 21

P
age 25



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

7.2

G Effective MUST DO

Be assured that the trust is meeting its obligations to have a 

legal basis to deprive someone of their liberty. Ensure that 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguard rules applications are fully 

understood, recognised and created by those staff who are 

accountable and responsible for the application.

Trustwide Chief Nurse

1. Repeat communication to all staff via the internet, 

Team Brief and daily huddles  for the next quarter. 

2. Matrons will be requested to ensure the process 

is displayed within all clinical environments to ensure 

that staff who don't access their emails are made 

aware of the process.

3. Meeting will be held via Matron’s forum to ensure 

that all senior staff are aware of responsibility and 

can share and support further implementation.

4. Training and ward specific update re MCA and 

DoLS has commenced throughout the Trust and will 

continue. 

5. Continue Audit to evidence improvement in staff 

awareness of safeguarding issues and specifically 

MCA and DoLS processes. Target support to wards 

that do/should apply DOLS regularly or where issues 

are identified.

6. A review of Safeguarding Adults processes within 

the Trust has been completed and the results of this 

will be available in Mid September 2018. The 

outcome will be considered and changes made to 

process to ensure risk is reduced.                       

7. The Medical lead for MCA has recently retired 

and Executive review is taking place to ensure that 

there is medical oversight and liaison within the 

Trust. This will further strengthen the ability to 

improve information sharing and liaise with staff at 

all levels and drive the service forward at Executive 

level. This is secondary to the Trust Safeguarding 

Nursing service contribution. 

Moderate

• Evidenced through awareness audit and 

feedback from staff, managers and multi-

agency partners.

• Changes in policy to be implemented via 

the safeguarding steering group.

• Communication evidence via vital signs 

and minutes from Matron Meetings.

• Poster to be visible in wards and 

departments.

Redacted
01/10/2018

7.3

G Responsive MUST DO

Work with stakeholders and commissioners to address the 

failure to meet almost all the national targets or standards for 

patient care. This includes most significantly the cancer 

standards and the failure of diagnostic standards.

Trustwide

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

COO to write to Chair of Western Locality Board to 

arrange a discussion on how best to pick these 

issues up.

Series of UHPNT/CCG Exec to Exec meetings to be 

arranged to agree areas of joint work.

If demand is above 

commissioned levels then risk 

of additional financial spend.

To achieve agreed trajectory. Monitored 

daily, reported to Board monthly and 

reviewed at IDM with NHSI bi-monthly.

Redacted 31/03/2019

7.4.1 G

Safe / 

Responsive / 

Well Led

MUST DO

Address and resolve the issue of unrecognised or 

unaddressed risks in the pharmacy teams connected with 

patient safety, staff pressures, performance, and governance 

failings.

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Complete Gap Analysis against Royal 

Pharmaceutical Society Hospital Pharmacy 

Standards to identify and manage unrecognised 

areas of risk.

None

Updated and maintained 'active' risk 

register. Managed by the newly formed 

Pharmacy Board and owned by designated 

leads in accordance with the Trustwide 

Risk Management Policy. Measurement: 

Risk Report (monthly).

Monitoring will be ongoing through MUAC 

and Pharmacy Board reporting to Safety 

and Quality Committee and Trust 

Management Executive.

Redacted 30/09/2018 ongoing

7.4.2 G See 7.4.1 See 7.4.1 See 7.4.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Review and update Pharmacy Risk Register to 

include items identified in the recent CQC inspection 

for example theft of medicines with no timescales of 

actions.

None

Monitoring will be ongoing through MUAC 

and Pharmacy Board reporting to Safety 

and Quality Committee and Trust 

Management Executive.

Risk Management Group will review 

Serious Risks and escalate as per Risk 

Management Policy.

Redacted 30/09/2018

7.4.3 X See 7.4.1 See 7.4.1 See 7.4.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Improve corporate oversight of pharmacy risk 

register by removing pharmacy reporting via Clinical 

Support Services and create a pharmacy specific 

report.

None
Pharmacy Specifically added to the 

corporate risk management report.
Redacted 01/08/2018 Complete 10-Aug-18

7.5.1 X
Safe / Well 

Led
MUST DO

Address and resolve the cultural, wellbeing, staffing, 

resource, and workload issues within the pharmacy service 

and as they affect both the service and the wider trust.

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Put in place an Interim management regime to 

support pharmacy that are committed to displaying 

the values of the organisation whilst being 

accessible and visible to Pharmacy staff.

Yes
Interim Chief Pharmacist appointed.

Interim Service Line Manager appointed.
Redacted 03/04/2018 Complete 03-Apr-18

7.5.2 X See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Additional senior expertise requested to support 

Pharmacy with the aim to speed up implementation 

of change.

None

Tiger Team put in place to support 

improvements in Pharmacy Service.

Metrics:

- Complete internal staff survey to enable 

measurement of early change. 

- Staff Temperature check 

- Reduction in absenteeism, improved 

recruitment and retention.

- Appraisals booked (and/or completed).

Monitoring will be ongoing through MUAC 

and Pharmacy Board reporting to Safety 

and Quality Committee and Trust 

Management Executive.

Redacted 30/07/2018 Complete 30-Jul-18

Page 22

P
age 26



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

7.5.3 X See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse
Secure interim support from partner organisation to 

support clinical leadership.
None

Pharmacists from Livewell to provide 

support at UHP.
Redacted 30/05/2018 Complete 30-May-18

7.5.4 G See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse
Implement a series of leadership and team 

development days planned to support staff. 
None

Regular team development and 

engagement sessions planned 
Redacted Ongoing

To date - 

- 2 leadership days -76% 

attended.

- 5 development days - 66% 

attended.

Further dates are planned to mop 

up those who have not had the 

opportunity to attend the initial 

sessions.

7.5.5 X See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse Conduct a gap analysis of current establishment.
Agreement with FIG to recruit to all existing 

vacancies but will be reviewed as required.
Redacted 01/07/2018 Complete 01/07/2018

7.5.6 G See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse
Recruit to current vacancies as identified in 

establishment review.
To be determined 

Resumption of Normal Service of Ward 

Based Pharmacists.

All vacancies recruited to as measured by 

the Vacancy rate.

Redacted 30/04/2019

Band 6 pharmacists posts 

offered with start dates Aug-Sept 

18.

Band 8a specialist pharmacists 

posts offered and also out to 

advert.

Complete % for vacancies is 

actual pharmacists started in 

post.

7.5.7 G See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1 See 7.5.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse
Conduct a workforce review in line with the planned 

pharmacy integration with Livewell.
To be determined Workforce paper to TME. Redacted 01/04/2019

7.6.1

G Safe MUST DO

Urgently produce standard operating procedures to ensure 

patients leave the hospital with critical medicines, and attend 

or are made aware of any critical follow-up appointments.

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse
To implement a system to monitor TTAs returned to 

pharmacy containing critical medicines.
None

Documented evidence of monitoring of 

TTAs returned to pharmacy containing 

critical medicines.

Redacted 14/09/2018

7.6.2

G See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse
Any critical medicine that is returned without a valid 

reason will be escalated.
None

Confirmation of new process implemented  - 

standard operating procedure produced.
Redacted 14/09/2018

7.6.3

G See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Develop a system to enable and encourage ward 

staff to state a reason for the return of TTAs 

containing critical medicines to pharmacy. 

An electronic tracking system which could help with 

this is due to go live over the summer of 2018 

(subject to capacity of the Software Development 

Team). Obtain update on progress with 

implementation.

None
Confirmation of status of implementation of  

electronic tracking system.
Redacted 28/02/2019

The pilot for EPMA has a 

delayed start date of February 

2019.  

7.6.4

G See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Lynher Ward Manager (part of Pharmacy Tiger 

Team) to meet with Dispensary Supply Manager and 

Head of Nursing for Medicine with a view to 

unpicking the ward process around discharge and 

TTAs to make this process more robust. Appropriate 

actions will then be developed.  

None

Development of process to ensure that 

patients leave hospital with critical 

medicines.

Redacted 26/10/2018

7.6.5

G See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1 See 7.6.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

1. Undertake a review of the confirmation letter 

process – both content of letter and adherence to 

process.

2. Undertake a review of the ward admin process 

relating to follow up appointments related to 

discharge process review.

None

Patients will be aware of, and attend, their 

critical follow up appointments.

Monitor via DNAs & Patient Cancellations

Redacted 30/11/2018

7.7.1 G Well Led MUST DO
Ensure effective governance within the pharmacy service to 

provide a high quality and safe service.

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Undertake a review of the current pharmacy 

governance framework and make recommendations 

to Trust Management Executive for a revised 

structure.

None

An accepted interim proposal by Trust 

Board for where Pharmacy Governance 

reports. 

To be ratified at the Pharmacy Board. 

Monitoring will be ongoing through MUAC 

which will now report to Safety and Quality 

Committee. A newly formed Pharmacy 

Board will report directly to Trust 

Management Executive.

Redacted 30/09/2018
Proposal will be presented to 

pharmacy board on 24/09/2018

7.7.2 G See 7.7.1 See 7.7.1 See 7.7.1

Trustwide - 

Pharmacy 

(Warning 

Notice)

Chief Nurse

Additional review and redesign of the Medicines 

Utilisation and Assurance Committee (MUAC) with 

recommendation to Safety and Quality Board for 

revised reporting.

None

Terms of reference (TOR) reviewed and 

updated for MUAC and a new TOR for the 

Pharmacy Board.

Redacted 31/10/2018

Page 23

P
age 27



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

7.8

G Well Led SHOULD DO
Demonstrate in the board papers the open and professional 

challenge we were told happened.
Trustwide

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

Board Secretary to ensure that any challenge at the 

Board and its Committees is minuted and the nature 

of the challenge is accurately and clearly stated in 

the minutes.  Invitations to Board members to raise 

questions on any item are always minuted, as is any 

response made.  When no questions arise, this is 

also minuted to reflect no challenge having been 

made.  This approach to minute taking will continue 

for the Board and its Committees. 

Director of Corporate Business, Chairman and 

Committee Chairs to review all Minutes to ensure 

that challenge is adequately captured. 

Not Applicable

Board and Committee minutes will reflect 

any and all challenge made.

This will be confirmed in the Board and 

Committee's review of minutes of previous 

meetings. 

Redacted 31/10/2018

7.9 G Well Led SHOULD DO

Maintain the personnel files of the trust’s directors to 

demonstrate that the evidence to support them being Fit and 

Proper Persons can be reviewed and checked.

Trustwide
Director of 

People

1. Create a checklist for Safe Recruitment and Fit 

and Proper Persons test and add it to all Executive 

Director and Non Executive Director personnel files.

2. As checklist is added to files, complete an audit 

and act as necessary to ensure compliance.

3.Put in place an annual audit schedule, next due 

September 19.

None

This will ensure consistency, that all 

relevant checks are completed and that all 

files are up to date and remain up to date.

Redacted 31/10/2018

7.10
X Well Led SHOULD DO

Update the policies and procedures relating to criminal 

record checks to ensure they are current and referring to the 

current processes.

Trustwide
Director of 

People
Policies have been updated. None

Policies will be checked annually to ensure 

compliance is maintained or earlier if 

legislative change.

Redacted Completed Completed 31/08/2018

7.11

G Well Led SHOULD DO

When producing the Quality Report or published documents 

for people who use the service, make sure they demonstrate 

whether the organisation has met its objectives to people 

who use services.

Trustwide Chief Nurse

On production of the Quality Account we will ensure 

that key metrics are included that demonstrate 

whether we have met the targeted objective.

Not Applicable

Quality Account June 2018/19 will 

demonstrate whether we have met our 

objectives.

Redacted 30/06/2019

7.12

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Address the recognised gap between the care groups in 

terms of the assurance process and as it flows upwards to 

the trust board. Consider, as would be best practice, an 

external review of governance as a possible way of 

addressing this.

Trustwide

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

We will commission an external review of our 

governance arrangements to independently test the 

robustness of assurance from Care Groups to the 

Trust Board.

£10,000

We will receive independent advice on our 

governance framework and take action to 

implement any recommendations for 

improvement where appropriate.

Redacted 31/12/2018

7.13

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Produce reliable data on the working hours of doctors and 

dentists in training to be able to gain assurance that the trust 

was meeting the requirement for these staff to work safety 

and undertake their training and development.

Trustwide
Director of 

People

Reliable data and assurance on the working hours 

of doctors and dentists will be gained through the 

Trust roll out of e-roster for medical staff

None

The Trust will have access to reliable 

information through a central database for 

Carter areas and Medicine. Compliance 

monitoring via TME and  HR&OD 

Committee.

Redacted 31/10/2019

7.14
G Well Led SHOULD DO

Provide the board with assurance that duty of candour, as a 

statutory regulation, is being consistently applied where 

required.

Trustwide Chief Nurse
Add the Duty of Candour metric to Integrated 

Performance Report.
Not Applicable

Assurance will be provided via the 

Integrated Performance Report.
Redacted 30/09/2018

7.15

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Demonstrate that progress is made on reducing the 

disproportionate level of violence and aggression from 

patients and the public to staff identifying as from a Black 

and minority ethnic background.

Trustwide

Director of 

People / 

Chief Nurse

1. To incorporate into leadership training (Manager's 

Passport) the promotion of a zero tolerance 

approach to acts of violence, aggression and 

harassment from members of the public/patients, 

towards staff, and outline management responsibility 

in supporting staff. 

2. Develop posters for display within staff areas 

across the Trust outlining zero tolerance to violence, 

aggression and harassment from the  public/patients 

and the assistance and support that is available for 

staff. 

3. With the recent appointment of a dedicated 

Physical Interventions Lead for the Trust, continue 

to roll out training for staff in conflict de-escalation, 

breakaway techniques and physical interventions, 

with a targeted approach to offer training for all 

patient/visitor facing staff identifying as from a Black 

and minority ethnic background. 

None

Leadership development will ensure that 

E&D and violence and aggression zero 

tolerance is embedded. 

Posters to be displayed Trust wide with 

promotion of conflict de-escalation, 

breakaway techniques and physical 

interventions training for staff.

Progress will be monitored via the staff 

survey although the impact of the actions 

are unlikely to be felt until the 2019 staff 

survey. This will be monitored at EDIWG.

Redacted

1. Manager's Passport 

training roll out 

commenced June 2018. 

2/3. Promotion of zero 

tolerance of violence and 

aggression, support 

channels and conflict 

resolution/de-escalation 

training by 30 November 

2018 

7.16

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Look again at the work plan for the Equality, Diversity and 

inclusivity group to ensure its objectives and achievable and 

realistic.

Trustwide
Director of 

People

Review EDIWG Work Plan to ensure that objectives 

are achievable and reporting timeframes realistic.
None 

Achievement against the work programme 

will be monitored through EDIWG and 

reviewed at 6 monthly intervals

Redacted 20/09/2018

7.17
G Well Led SHOULD DO

Produce a published Workforce Race Equality submission 

which is complete and demonstrates the trust is investing in 

this area.

Trustwide
Director of 

People

WRES submission will be published on the Trust's 

website with narrative.
None

Achievement of this will be monitored 

through EDIWG.
Redacted 30/09/2018

7.18

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Provide the board with assurance that investigations into 

serious incidents or complaints described in the monthly 

integrated performance report are leading to learning and 

change where this is needed.

Trustwide Chief Nurse

Learning from incidents and complaints will be 

added to the Safety & Quality Committee report 

(Safety & Quality are a sub committee of the Board). 

Relevant publications, e.g. the REACT bulletins will 

also be added to the appendix of this report.

Not Applicable

Assurance to be gained via Safety & 

Quality Committee which will receive the 

Integrated Performance Report.

Redacted 31/10/2018

7.19

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Give assurance that the trust board is reviewing and satisfied 

with the risks it is responsible for on the Board Assurance 

Framework.

Trustwide

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is already 

reviewed at every public meeting by the Trust Board. 

We will, however, complete the review and refresh 

of our BAF which began in July 2018.

Not Applicable

We will ensure that the Trust Board better 

understands the risks for which it is 

responsible and defines and oversees the 

actions required to mitigate them.

Redacted 31/10/2018

7.20

X Well Led SHOULD DO

When producing the annual complaints report, look to 

describe changes and improvements made from complaints 

and concerns, and not from other areas of activity within the 

trust unrelated to complaints.

Trustwide Chief Nurse

The complaints annual report this year included a 

range of improvements which were initiated as a 

result of patient feedback including complaints.  

Going forward Datix can now report on specific 

actions taken as a result of individual complaints.  

This will therefore not be an issue going forward

None - forms part of the Datix 

complaints module

The annual report will clearly describe 

changes and improvements made from 

complaints and concerns. Regular reporting 

of action plans and actions taken to PEC 

on a bi monthly basis.

Redacted Complete Complete 29/08/2018

Page 24

P
age 28



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

7.21

G Responsive SHOULD DO

Look to reduce the increasing number of complaints that are 

reopened, often as they have not satisfied the person who 

has complained.

Trustwide Chief Nurse

1. Review the current classification used to identify 

reopened complaints.  Report those complaints 

where the complainant is dissatisfied with the quality 

and detail of the response. This will include the 

following two reportable categories: Failed to fully 

answer questions and / or Remains dissatisfied.

2. Define quality check process including a step by 

step guide to ensure the response letter provides an 

honest and accurate response, addressing all 

issues raised . Patient Experience & Engagement 

Lead to randomly review a selection of complaint 

responses each week for quality.

None - forms part of the Datix 

complaints module

Reduction in number of re-opened 

complaints.

Regular monitoring of the number of 

complaints re-opened. Additional section in 

the Patient Experience Report to focus on 

re-opened complaints showing run rate of 

cases and reasons for reopening.

Redacted 30/11/2018

7.22

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Review the risks around electricity supply and car parking 

capacity, and ensure these are reflected on the corporate 

risk register and the Board Assurance Framework if 

considered appropriate. Ensure the risks around the estate 

have longer-term actions described in the Board Assurance 

Framework.

Trustwide

Director of 

Corporate 

Business

The Corporate Risk Review Panel will review any 

DATIX risks associated with the electricity supply 

and car parking capacity as part of its meeting in 

October 2018. With regard to the risks associated 

with the Estate, this will be addressed as part of the 

review and refresh of our BAF referred to in action 

7.19.

None

We will ensure that these risks have been 

appropriately recorded, reported and acted 

upon in accordance with the Trust's Risk 

Management Policy.

Redacted 30/10/2018

7.23

X Well Led SHOULD DO
Resolve the issues for the infection prevention and control 

team around signing-off data for NHS England.
Trustwide Chief Nurse

There were significant IT issues in April which meant 

we had problems logging onto the This was largely 

due to the introduction of a new system by our IT 

department which resulted in us signing off our April 

data later than the required date of the 15th May. 

Unfortunately the problems persisted into May. 

Despite this the May data was signed off before the 

June 15th deadline and the issue has now been 

resolved.

Not Applicable Not Applicable Redacted Complete Complete 15/06/2018

7.24

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Consider what improvements can be made to reduce the 

risks from the three-stage safeguarding system for adults in 

the light of the far better system used for children. Bring this 

risk to the corporate risk register for monitoring and 

improvement.

Trustwide Chief Nurse

1. A review of Safeguarding Adults processes within 

the Trust and the results of this will be available in 

Mid September 2018. The outcome will be 

considered and changes made to process to ensure 

risk is reduced.                  

2. This has been placed on the Trust risk register 

and review of the recording system will be complete 

by the end of September following the wider review 

of safeguarding adult systems.

Moderate

New system to be in place end October 

2018 reported via Safeguarding Steering 

Group and change in policy to reflect this.

Redacted 01/11/2018

7.25

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Add the issue around it being possible to access and 

incorrectly update the wrong patient medical record to the 

risk register for monitoring and improvement.

Trustwide

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

Datix Risk recorded - ID: 6323 with 

Simeon Brundell (Clinical Safety Officer) and Paul 

Copleston (Head of IM&T Software Development, 

Integration and Clinical Systems Management) as 

the actioning officers. ICM has warning notices in 2 

places already. Upgrade added a further measure to 

alert requester to ensure  that they have selected 

the correct patient. Plan to add a double check to 

the request form which will send alerts to the Clinical 

Safety Officer.

None

Clinical Safety Officer and Head of IM&T 

Software Development, Integration and 

Clinical Systems Management regularly to 

progress the actions.

This is also expected to be picked up in the 

revised Clinical Reference Group when it is 

established with a Chief Clinical Information 

Officer (CCIO) in post (about to be 

appointed). 

Redacted 01/11/2018 Implementation

7.26
G Well Led SHOULD DO

Raise awareness with staff of how patient feedback is used 

to improve services.
Trustwide Chief Nurse

New ward and department noticeboards to include a 

section which identifies actions taken to improve.

Awaiting confirmation of 

funding for noticeboards

Noticeboards on each ward and 

department.
Redacted 30/10/2018

Draft noticeboard in place. 

Awaiting funding confirmation

7.27

G Well Led SHOULD DO

Demonstrate that actions have been taken when learning 

from patient death and how these actions have improved 

practice and reduced the risk of events happening again.

Trustwide
Medical 

Director

The Learning from Deaths report will include specific 

examples where actions have been taken to 

improve practice or cross referenced to the 

appropriate improvement program.

Not Applicable
Assurance to be gained from the Learning 

from Deaths report to Trust Board.
Redacted 30/11/2018

7.28 G Well Led SHOULD DO

Provide consistency in the quality and effectiveness of the 

mortality and morbidity reviews at service line or speciality 

level. Ensure in doing so that any concerns within national 

indicators are investigated and explained.

Trustwide
Medical 

Director

The Mortality Review Group will now look at HSMR 

& SHMI by Service Line in a run chart format; this is 

the same data that is available on the Service Line 

dashboards.

The Group have agreed a set of principles when 

reviewing the data that will require a response from 

the Care Group / Service Line if:

1. The Service Line Lower Confidence Limits show 

us as an outlier compared with similar services. This 

is consistent with the Service Line dashboards.

2. 5 consecutive data points are showing a negative 

trend.

3. Mortality alerts received in relation to any patient 

group.

The Care Groups will be requested to attend the 

Mortality Review Group (period to be defined) to 

update the Group on:

• What we have learned, both good and what needs 

improvement; and

• What action has been taken.

Not Applicable Updated report to Mortality Review Group. Redacted 31/10/2018

Use of Resources

Page 25

P
age 29



25 50 75 100

Percentage Complete
Status

R
e
f 

N
o

.

 G
Y

R
 

S
ta

tu
s

Area for Improvement Planned Action(s)

Planned Outcome and how will you 

ensure ongoing assurance of 

compliance?

Responsible Lead

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e

n
t 

N
o

ti
c
e

Core Service 
Executive 

Lead

Financial Impact 

(where relevant)

D
o

m
a
in

 

(S
C

E
R

W
)

Actual

Date 

Completion

Target Completion 

Date

8.1
G

Use of 

Resources

Area for 

improvement

The trust is not meeting its constitutional performance 

targets.

Trustwide - 

Use of 

Resources

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

See 7.4 See 7.4 See 7.4 Redacted See 7.4 See 7.4

8.2

G
Use of 

Resources

Area for 

improvement

Investigating trends and themes of re-admissions at a 

specialty level in order to reduce re-admissions where 

possible is an on-going work stream.

Trustwide - 

Use of 

Resources

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1. Increase the prominence of re-admission 

performance in Service Line performance 

dashboards and Care Group performance meetings. 

2. Review Service Lines with worst performance and 

complete specific action plan in these areas.

Reduce contract reductions for 

readmissions. Potential cost 

implications for local Service 

Line actions. 

Target to improve Trust performance to the 

peer median as per the Model Hospital with 

improvement from 7.95% to 7.5%.

To be monitored at Care Group Review 

meetings.

Redacted 31/07/2019

8.3

G
Use of 

Resources

Area for 

improvement

Reviewing the drivers of non-elective pre-procedure bed 

days and reducing these where possible, is an on-going 

piece of work for the trust.

Trustwide - 

Use of 

Resources

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

1. Increase the prominence of re-admission 

performance in Service Line performance 

dashboards and Care Group performance meetings. 

2. Review Service Lines with worst performance and 

complete specific action plan in these areas.

Potential cost implications for 

local Service Line actions. 

Overall improvements will 

improve patient flow.

Target to improve Trust performance to the 

peer median as per the Model Hospital with 

improvement from 7.95% to 7.5%.

To be monitored at Care Group Review 

meetings.

Redacted 31/07/2019

8.4

G
Use of 

Resources

Area for 

improvement

The trust is part of an NHS Improvement deep dive review of 

its high Medical Costs.

Trustwide - 

Use of 

Resources

Medical 

Director

Detailed work plan already completed under the 

Medical Workforce Productivity Programme with a 

number of actions identified. 

Additional efficiency programmes detailed below will 

also improve Medical Productivity.

Reduction in Medical 

Workforce costs.

Target to improve DDC time in Job plans to 

peer median as per the Model Hospital with 

improvement from 72% to 77%.

To be monitored at monthly TME for 

Productivity and Improvement.

Redacted 30/04/2019

8.5

G
Use of 

Resources

Area for 

improvement

The trust in the process of embedding the results of a 

number of internal and external reviews of efficiency 

opportunities.

Trustwide - 

Use of 

Resources

Chief 

Operating 

Officer

Detailed programmes already in place for Urgent 

Care flow improvement, Outpatients productivity and 

Theatre Productivity. These are supplemented by 

the Trust's GIRFT response and deep dives on 

outlying areas identified by Model Hospital.

Improved productivity will lead 

to financial improvement

Improve Outpatients utilisation to 90%.

Improve Theatre utilisation to 85%.

Reduce urgent care admission and length 

of stay.

To be monitored at monthly TME for 

Productivity and Improvement.

Redacted 30/04/2019

8.6

G
Use of 

Resources

Area for 

improvement

There is scope to review the trust’s medicines cost to 

establish if the high costs are warranted by the tertiary level 

services it provides.

Trustwide - 

Use of 

Resources

Director of 

Finance

Initial report describing high medicines costs 

completed. Further investigation required once 

immediate improvements to Pharmacy services has 

been completed.

Potential cost savings.
To be monitored at monthly TME for 

Productivity and Improvement
Redacted 31/07/2019

8.7

G
Use of 

Resources

Area for 

improvement

Opportunities exist to recurrently reduce the trust’s energy 

costs.

Trustwide - 

Use of 

Resources

Director of 

Planning and 

Site Services 

Continue efforts to drive down consumption (kWh / 

m2) to mitigate the impact of continuing to add high 

demand equipment onto the site – continuing to 

access SALIX funding to implement invest to save 

schemes such as the low energy lighting. 

1. Connect the low temperature take-off from the 

CHP into the Trust Phase I hot water system to 

improve efficiency.

2. Deliver the DCHW low energy lighting 

replacement scheme.

3. Deliver the MSCP low energy lighting replacement 

scheme.

4. Develop the business case for the replacement of 

lighting throughout all Outpatient Departments

Loan funding to be received 

offset by cost savings.

Target to improve on £0.05/kWh

Updates are scheduled in to the Financial 

Improvement Group.

Redacted

1. 31/12/2018

2. 31/03/2019

3. 31/03/2019

4. TBA - early 2019

Page 26

P
age 30



DETAILED REPORT 

Plymouth Health and Adult Social Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 26 September 2018

Subject Never Events update

Prepared by Steve Mumford
Approved by Phil Hughes

Purpose

To provide HASC OSC an update on Never Events as reported in June 2018. 

Background

As a Trust we continue to have an open culture of reporting patient safety related incidents, 
recognising that learning from these incidents will help us to improve our services and make 
them safer.

We’ve continually demonstrated a positive reporting culture, with our incident reporting rate 
which continues to place us firmly within the national upper quartile. In healthcare, a high 
incident reporting rate is associated with a strong patient safety culture.

If you look at the percentages of reported patient safety incidents here in Plymouth, which 
have resulted in severe harm or death, they have continued to fall in recent years:

 0.80% in 2013/14

 0.67% in 2014/15

 0.43% in 2015/16 

 0.24% in 2016/17

Our latest data from Aug 17 – Jul 18 shows the percentage of incidents that have resulted in 
severe harm or death is 0.45%. This continued low rate is thanks to our staff, who continue 
to work incredibly hard delivering half a million patient episodes per year. 

We put patient safety at the heart of everything we do and whilst no one comes to work to 
cause harm, for a small minority of our patients, mistakes do happen and things do not go as 
planned. When mistakes happen it is essential that we are open and honest about them and, 
importantly, that we use them as learning opportunities to help us improve our services and 
make them safer.

In line with this, we reported two Never Events through our Trust Board papers for June 
2018.  Below is what was reported in the June Board paper:

* May 2018 W138992, Wrong Site Surgery Never Event; Patient attending Outpatient 
Department (OPD) for planned insertion of left grommet. ENT SpR cleans out right 
ear canal and finds an extruded grommet, previously placed and continues to insert 
grommet in right ear. The patient then indicates that hearing is still muffled on the 
opposite side at which point the planned insertion of the left ear was then completed. 

Page 1



* June 2018 W141559, Wrong Site Surgery Never Event; The patient attended for 
removal of a lesion to his right ear (lower lobe). A wide excision of lesion was 
performed to the top of the patient’s right ear. At the end of the procedure the patient 
indicated they were expecting removal of lesion on the right lower lobe as illustrated 
in the patient records.

No harm came to either of the patients and they were informed immediately of what had 
happened. The Never Events were both minor procedures carried out in outpatients areas; 
we are currently rolling out our National Safety Standards for Invasive Procedures which set 
out the key steps necessary to deliver safe care for patients undergoing invasive procedures 
and will allow organisations delivering NHS-funded care to standardise the processes that 
underpin patient
Safety.

Update

Immediate actions have been taken to prevent a recurrence of the two never events pending 
final investigations. 

Patients and families are asked to participate in this process and will often contribute to the 
investigation and design of solutions to prevent future incidents. 

As a Trust, in line with our commitment to openness and transparency with the public, we 
report our never events in our public board meetings and give details as soon as they have 
been confirmed through the national reporting route.

You can never say ‘never’ where human beings are concerned. This is why the Human 
Factors Training field has developed, a field in which some of our own health professionals at 
Plymouth have lead roles, looking at systems and processes to reduce the likelihood of 
anything going wrong.
 
We want to reassure the committee that patients waiting to come in to be treated and 
something untoward happening as a result of our safety processes, is very, very small 
indeed. You can be reassured of our strong safety culture because we learn from the rare 
occasions that things do go wrong.

Current Investigation status on outstanding Never Events investigations

Root Cause Analysis (RCA) for W138992

The final investigation report was submitted to the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
week commencing Monday 10th September.

Root Cause Analysis (RCA) W141559

The draft investigation report is due for review week commencing Monday 17th September.

Page 2



Page 1 of 26 Draft April 2018 v2

Draft Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy

1) Foreword
2) Vision
3) Current position in Devon
4) Examples of great practise in Devon
5) Stakeholder engagement and voices
6) National policy context
7) Economic Case
8) Areas of priority

Foreword
[Additional content for foreword to be prepared following engagement]

Vision
Our vision is to improve the mental health and wellbeing of all ages, from children through to older 
adults, in Devon working in partnership with people with lived experience, families, communities 
and the third sector.  The quality of service and clinical outcome will not depend on where a 
person is resident in the county.

We will do this by ensuring there is both parity of esteem with physical health and that service 
(health and social, mental and physical) meets the whole needs to the person. We will work 
together to create new models of support that focus on people’s strengths, recovery, self-care and 
encourage independence - reducing reliance on hospital care.

There will be a clear focus on the prevention of ill health, early intervention, health promotion and 
the development of more resilient communities that can support people with mental health needs.
The strategic aims for improving mental health and mental health services within the context of the 
Wider Devon STP are:

 We will ensure our services meet local needs;
 We will ensure that we maximise the effectiveness of mental health spend and investment 

to achieve better outcomes;
 We will improve the promotion of mental health and the prevention of mental illness in 

primary care and in communities; and
 We will improve provision for those with severe long-term mental illness and people who 

have both mental health and physical health needs

Current position in Devon
There are over 1.2 million people living and working in the county of Devon with more people living 
into their later years than elsewhere in the country, many live in relative isolation due to transport 
links and loneliness is an issue. The following outcomes measures have a relationship to mental 
health, including some of the wider determinants which can impact on mental health and wellbeing 
throughout life. These indicators suggest a mixed picture when compared to the England average 

Page 1



at Devon STP level.  There is also variability within the county when comparing to the local 
authority areas to the Devon STP total. 

Type of 
Indicator Indicator England South 

West STP Devon Plymouth Torbay

Suicide rate 9.9 10.8 11.5 10.7 9.5 14.1
Excess <75 mortality in 
Serious Mental Illness 370 x 337.6 329.9 369.7 319.3

Infant mortality rate 3.9 3.4 x 3.6 2.6 4.4
Mortality

Killed and seriously injured 
on roads 39.7 39.7 x 45.5 32.9 32

Hospital stays for self-harm 185.3 246.3 x 219.6 273.3 362.8
Hospital admissions - self 
harm (age 10-24) 430.5 x 670.2 614.1 617.2 1167.9Admissions
Alcohol related admissions 
(broad) 2225.7 x 1979.7 1722.4 2264.1 2293.7

Health related quality of life 
(LTCs) 0.737 x 0.727 0.75 0.699 0.714

Dementia diagnosis rate 
(%) 67.9 62.8  60.6 58.9 63.2Diagnosis 

and Support
Emotional difficulties in 
looked after children 14 x 16.2 16.7 15.4 14.9

Smoking status at time of 
delivery 10.7 11.3  12.3 11.7 15.2

Breastfeeding initiation 74.5 79.5 x x 69 72
Healthy 

Start In Life

Under 18 conceptions 18.8 15.8 x 16.4 19.6 25.7
Physically active adults 66 70.4 x 73.9 67.6 67.1
Excess weight adults 61.30% 60.30% 62.50% 61.60% 66.50% 61.20%
Excess weight Children 
10/11 years old 34.20% x 30.30% 29.30% 31.20% 33.70%

Excess weight Children 4/5 
years old 22.60% x 23.90% 22.80% 26.30% 24.40%

Obese children (aged 10-
11) 20 16.2 x 15.2 17.2 19.9

Healthy 
Lifestyles 

and 
Behaviours

Smoking prevalence in 
adults 15.5 13.9 x 12.6 17.2 16.7

GCSEs achieved 57.8 58.4 x 60.2 50.2 56.6Education 
and 

Employment
Employment rate (aged 16-
64) (%) 74.4 77.6 74.9 74.7 74.8 76

Deprivation score (IMD 
2015) 21.8 x x 17.1 26.6 28.8

Children in low income 
families (under 16s) 16.8 13.7 x 11.9 19 20.2

Children in poverty 20.10% x 17.20% 14.30% 21.50% 23.60%

Deprivation 
and Poverty

Fuel poverty 11.00% x 12.00% 12.20% 12.00% 10.80%
Dwellings (with category 
one hazard) 10.40% x 15.10% 15.40% 20.80% 3.10%

Statutory homelessness 0.8 0.4* x 0.5* 0.3 0.9Home
Rough sleeping (per 1,000 
households) 0.18 x 0.22 0.22 0.18 0.33

Crime Violent crime (violence 
offences) 20 17.7 x 12.6 24.8 25.4

Source: Combined December 2017 STP Outcomes and Prevention Challenges and Public Health Fingertips Data downloaded July 
2017:(https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-
profiles/data#page/0/gid/1938132701/pat/6/par/E12000009/ati/102/are/E10000008/iid/20201/age/1/sex/2)

Page 2

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/data#page/0/gid/1938132701/pat/6/par/E12000009/ati/102/are/E10000008/iid/20201/age/1/sex/2
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/data#page/0/gid/1938132701/pat/6/par/E12000009/ati/102/are/E10000008/iid/20201/age/1/sex/2


There are a number of existing strategies relating to prevention, health and wellbeing and service 
delivery that are vital to the delivery of the strategy aims of this Devon STP Mental Health and 
Wellbeing strategy. Working from the principle that we want mental health to be everyone’s 
business this strategy will link with, and in parts inform the following other strategies and 
programmes of improvement work;

 Prevention and early intervention (STP workstream)
 Children and young people (STP workstream)
 Primary Care (STP workstream)
 Integrated care model (STP workstream)
 Learning Disabilities (STP workstream)
 Acute Services Review (STP workstream)
 Children and young people (STP workstream)
 Workforce (STP workstream)
 Local Authority Health and Wellbeing Strategies
 Communities Strategy Devon County Council
 Five Year Forward View, Mental Health Concordat (suicide prevention, wider prevention)
 Wider Provider Networks

In addition to these strategies, careful thought will be given to the great impact that individuals and 
communities can make to health and wellbeing when statutory organisations do not over intervene 
or disrupt the environment in which these agents thrive.  Activation of this community based asset 
is a critical success factor in improving the mental health and wellbeing of the population.  Devon 
has high-levels of volunteering and almost twice as many registered charities compared to the 
national average. We have enthusiastic and skilled voluntary and community sector infrastructure 
organisations that have extensive experience in developing and promoting volunteering activity.

There are a set of complex needs in Devon;
1) Seasonal and migratory work means that for some income is insecure. We have our share of 
families in difficulty, people struggling with debt, poor housing, relational breakdown and addiction.
 
2) Depression affects over 100,000 of us at any one time and 4 in every 1,000 of us will be 
experiencing severe mental illness.  Suicide rates in Devon are higher than the national average, 
although the Devon County Council footprint is similar to the national average.

3) Over 13,000 people are living with dementia across Devon, a figure predicted to rise by 77% 
over the next 12 years.  Alzheimer's Research UK state that 1.3% of the UK population is living 
with Dementia (c850,000 people).  As noted dementia diagnosis rates (in primary care) are below 
the national average so it is likely there are more people than stated.  It is estimated that with 
appropriate alternatives and supporting services in the community that 40% of acute hospital 
dementia admissions are avoidable and 95% of mental health dementia admissions are avoidable.

4) Independent analysis shows that people with severe need account disproportionately for 
secondary care resource consumption.  

5) Independent analysis indicates a shortfall of mental health beds for the population of Devon 
which means some residents are care for away from their community.  We know that this 

Page 3



increases the length of time someone stays in inpatient environment as they are in less familiar 
surroundings, away from family and friends.

6) There are inequalities in outcome for people accessing mental health services as compared to 
those who do not as well as outcomes for those with Mental Health illness based on the place they 
live within the county;

 There is a gap of around 19 years for men and 17 years for women between those who use 
mental health services and those who don’t across the Devon population.  This means they 
live roughly 20-25% less years.  (strategy unit)

 As people age life expectancy between mental health services users and those not in 
contact with mental health services becomes more marked.  Those aged 65 are likely to 
have around 50-55% less remaining life expectancy if they are mental health services than 
those who are not. (strategy unit)

 The complexity of population needs within the county and the mental health outcomes vary 
with a strong correlation between outcomes and complexity. (CF analysis)

 People who use mental health services are 2-4 times more likely to die from cancers, 
circulatory disease and respiratory disease than the rest of the Devon population. (strategy 
unit)

 Rates of emergency hospital admissions are more than 3 times higher amongst people who 
use mental health services than the rest of the population. (strategy unit)

7) Based on national data around 30% of people with a long term physical condition also have a 
mental health problem and a further 46% of people with a mental health problem have a long term 
physical condition (Kings Fund).  Applying this to locally means approximately 110,000 (around 1 
in 10) people in Devon have a need for services that address more than one aspect of health and 
social care needs.

8) At times there is a lack of collaboration between mental health and physical health settings 
which means that people with co-morbidities are receiving medicalised and fragmented care and 
treatments. This results in a high cost through use of services and poor outcomes for people.  
Those who present to services with medically unexplained symptoms are one example of the 
current state.  

9) The first experience of those suffering lifetime mental health problems is significant in the early 
years of life with 50% by the age of 14 years and 75% by the age of 25 years.  Nationally, 10% of 
children and young people (aged 5-16 years) have a clinically diagnosable mental problem, yet 
70% of children and adolescents who experience mental health problems have not had 
appropriate interventions at an early age. (MH Foundation, Fundamental Facts about MH 2015).  
The transition to adult services can be difficult and disjointed for children and their families.

10) 1 in 7 mothers will experience a mental health problem during pregnancy or postnatally 

11) The commissioning of mental health services for the population of Devon is the responsibility 
of 3 local authorities, NHS England and 2 CCGs. 

12) Devon has a geographical footprint which includes both rural and urban populations. This 
means that to achieve the same outcomes for people, services might be delivered differently.

Page 4



--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Examples of good practise in Devon

[We are collecting positive experiences of Mental Health and Wellbeing from people with lived 
experience to strengthen this section]

There are many examples of good and innovative practise in Devon in terms of service design, 
wellbeing programmes and support for people with lived experience live fulfilling and productive 
lives.  Some examples of this include:

Thrive Plymouth is a 10 year programme to get everyone working together to improve health and 
wellbeing and narrow the gap in health status between people and communities in the city of 
Plymouth. 2015/16 was the Thrive Plymouth year of focus on schools was able to build on the 
foundations developed by schools and supported through programmes. It provided an opportunity 
to promote the Thrive Plymouth approach, to recognise the work that schools were already doing 
and how this could develop further and create new partnerships for action to support the health 
and wellbeing approach in schools. Schools and partners have recognised the impact of the 
common risk factor of poor mental health on a wide range of outcomes for children, including 
health and attainment, and have worked together to address this, by developing whole-school 
approaches for mental wellbeing and co-commissioning services in secondary and special 
schools. Schools have been working to create healthy environments, for example, through 
learning in the natural environment, creating healthy dining experiences or opening their doors for 
partners to deliver a range of health interventions directly to the children. This year the focus for 
Thrive Plymouth is on mental wellbeing and the 5 ways to wellbeing. The aim is to raise 
awareness of the 5 ways to wellbeing amongst the whole population and to create more 
opportunities for local people to participate in the 5 ways. This is an opportunity we must use to 
drive forward our collective efforts to improve mental wellbeing in all age groups but we are 
particularly looking at 16-25 year olds to try to embed 5 ways to wellbeing as life skills for young 
people as they move to independence.

Plymouth has recently been announced as a pilot site for Community Sentence Treatment 
Requirement which is a formulated programme, delivered by health as an alternative to a 
custodial sentence for some individuals with a MH problem.  This includes Mental Health 
Treatment Requirements, Drug Rehabilitation Requirements and Alcohol Treatment 
Requirements.

The Torbay Healthy Learning Website has recently launched. It was designed to support 
educational staff in promoting health and wellbeing in their setting. It provides centralised site for 
information, guidance, teaching resources and service signposting. A section of this website 
covers emotional health and wellbeing. 

Established in 2013, the Devon Recovery Learning Community arose from the initial cohort of 
NHS Trusts working with the Centre for Mental Health’s supporting recovery programme, 
Implementing Recovery through Organisational Change (ImROC). The purpose of a Recovery 
Learning Community is to enable people to access co-produced educational opportunities that are 
experienced as hopeful and helpful in supporting them in their recovery. It offers effective 
opportunities to learn how to get well and stay well. Recovery leads in Devon elected to develop a 

Page 5



‘learning community’ rather than a ‘college’ in recognition of our geography, the aspiration to grow 
a wide network of community partners and the preferences of those involved. It currently has over 
500 registered students, provides around 100 co-produced courses, involving more than 40 peer 
tutors, working with 16 community partners, delivering courses in 24 sites across Devon.

Workways is the Individual Placement and Support Service (IPS) in Devon. It is an integral part of 
the vocational rehabilitation Services. Workways has been helping people with a mental health 
condition to find or remain in paid employment since November 2001. It is funded by the NEW 
Devon Clinical Commissioning Group and Devon County Council. Originally set up for Exeter 
residents, the service expanded to cover East and Mid Devon in 2004. Workways have been 
working using the IPS approach since 2011 and have been a Centre of Excellence since 2013.  In 
2017 Workways team supported people to achieve 52 successful job outcomes. 

Early Help 4 Mental Health is a prevention and early intervention programme, operating across 
Devon; with culture change at its core. The programme works with schools to promote and build 
mentally healthy behaviours and resilience, helping children to lead happy and healthy lives. It was 
co-designed with stakeholders and partners and strong connections remain between people, the 
service and other services across the NHS, social care and third sector. Children and young 
people can get support online, face to face in groups or individually. Schools can access support 
to develop a whole school approach to support emotional, psychological and social wellbeing. In a 
recent evaluation, 74% of children and young people who received face-to-face counselling 
experienced an improvement in their emotional wellbeing and 94% demonstrated progress against 
the goals they set. 69% of logins online were made outside of normal office hours offering flexible 
support to young people. The programme is recognised as a positive example by the Local 
Government Association

MINDFUL EMPLOYER® is a NHS initiative run by Workways. This supports people with a mental 
health condition to find or remain in employment. MINDFUL EMPLOYER was developed by 
employers in Exeter and launched in 2004. Initially intended as a purely local initiative, it has since 
developed throughout the UK and has been launched abroad. MINDFUL EMPLOYER has been 
recommended as good practise by the UK government and other national organisations. 2017 
2017 saw over 200 employers sign the Charter for Employers who are Positive About Mental 
Health.

The budget for all people who are placed out of area because there are currently no specialist 
local services to meet their needs has been delegated by commissioners to the local specialist 
Mental Health Trust. This is known as the individual patient placement (IPP) budget.  The Trust 
has commissioned a service from third sector organisations to provide support locally for people 
who are ready to leave hospital but still require support to live independently. This enhanced 
community recovery service offers up to 24/7 support for people in their own tenancies and has 
been very successful in providing personalised care in homely settings.

A multi-agency team is working in Exeter from the CoLab (an innovative centre which provides a 
base for a range of services) to develop a more integrated approach to supporting people who are 
homeless and vulnerably housed who face multiple disadvantages. This team includes two mental 
health practitioners who work from the Clocktower GP Surgery which is co-located with CoLab and 

Page 6



provides a primary care service. The Clocktower Surgery is rated as ‘outstanding’ by the Care 
Quality Commission.

Langdon Hospital (Dawlish) provides a range of medium, low and open inpatient secure services 
for men. Dewnams is a 60 bedded medium secure unit – was opened in 2013 and is regarded as 
‘state of the art’ in terms of its design and quality of care.  The services provided at Langdon 
Hospital are rated as ‘outstanding’ by the Care Quality Commission and it has received awards for 
the  work to develop a Service users Council, the Discovery Centre (a Recovery College) and its 
ground breaking primary care centre which is ensures people get excellent care with both their 
physical and mental health.

The South West Zero Suicide collaborative in Devon has been involved in a cross community 
collaborative approach to suicide prevention since 2014. This started as part of South West Zero 
Suicide collaborative initially funded by and hosted in the Strategic Clinical network. This won an 
HSJ award for Patient Safety in 2016. The collaborative has now been wound up, but a local 
'grassroots' organisation 'The Devon and Torbay Suicide Alliance' has been formed and continues 
the work.  The DTSPA involves a broad range of stakeholders; these include statutory services, 
voluntary sector services, and many people with lived experience. There is an extensive range of 
work taking place. This includes work to reduce suicide in public places, training in suicide 
prevention, support for families bereaved by suicide, Samaritan support for those leaving inpatient 
services to name but a few. The range of projects reflects the varied nature of the stakeholders 
and the organic way that this work has developed. Devon has produced a suicide prevention 
implementation plan coordinated by public health. All three local authority areas work closely 
together around suicide prevention; including the roll out of Suicide Prevention Training across the 
STP area.

The Devon memory Café Consortium has been established to represent the best interests of 
memory Cafes in Devon, whilst ensuring that they maintain their own independence. The aim is to 
support people living with dementia and their carers through the Memory Café movement – 
making sure they have access to peer support, information, advice and meaningful activities.
Devon County Council is working with the Alzheimer’s Society to help support people with 
dementia.

The new contract with the Alzheimer’s Society means that Dementia Support Workers, which 
are highly valued by carers of people with dementia, will continue to work in local communities 
across Devon. Dementia Support Workers work in towns and villages, helping people with the 
condition, and their families, to identify and make use of local services that can help them. Helping 
communities to be more resilient and able to respond to residents’ needs will help people with 
dementia live independently for as long as possible, without need for ongoing care.

A new Mother and Baby Unit is currently under construction, in Exeter, which when operational 
will support mothers who have mental illness either during pregnancy or in the year after birth.  
There is an interim provision of 4 beds in a temporary unit available from April 2018 with the 
permanent 8 bedded unit due to open in 2019.  There are also supporting perinatal community 
services.  This increases provision in the South West from 4 beds in Bristol and seeks to address 
the ambitions described for perinatal care in the Mental Health 5 Year Forward View.  

Page 7



Devon has well established IPAT/Depression and Anxiety services in place across the County 
with over 16,000 new referrals each year including people with long term conditions such as 
diabetes, obesity and COPD.   Performance is better than national targets set against treatment 
waiting times and recovery rates.  This provides a strong base from which to build the extended 
services into a wider group of people with long term physical conditions.

These examples of good practise provide a foundation on which to build a wider geographical and 
consistent offer to the residents of Devon. 

[Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health- to be included]

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Stakeholder engagement and voices  
[(Intention Statement- to be removed from final document) We are committed to working with our 
population. We will engage with our population, including people with lived experience, children 
and young people, carers and the people who support them to better understand what they want 
from mental health and wellbeing services and how we can improve their experiences and 
outcomes. We will be mindful in undertaking this work of the need to consider how those with 
protected characteristics are heard in this process.]

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

National policy context 
The 5YFV for mental health identifies 3 areas of priority which contribute to the development of the 
strategy for Devon.  They are broadly consistent with the themes from local engagement and are;

1) 7 day NHS

Action Outcome
People in crisis should have access 
to MH care 7 days per week, 24 
hours per day

by 20/21 CMHT 24/7 crisis response

Services adequately resourced to 
offer intensive home treatment as an 
alternative to acute admission

not prescribed

Liaison Mental Health in acute 
hospitals

by 20/21 all age MH liaison service in acute

by 20/21 @ least 50% acute meet 'core 24'
People experiencing a first episode of 
psychosis should have access to 
NICE approved care package 
<2weeks of referral

by April 2016 50% should have access to 
early intervention in psychosis services

by 20/21 60% should have access to early 
intervention in psychosis services

Expand proven community based 
services to people of all ages with 

not prescribed

Page 8



severe Mental Health problems who 
need support to live safely as close to 
home as possible
More step down from secure i.e. 
residential rehabilitation, supported 
housing and forensic or assertive 
outreach teams

not prescribed

Out of area placements for acute 
care should be reduced and 
eliminated as quickly as possible

No out of area placements by 20/21

Reduce suicide rates by 20/21 reduce by 10%

2) Integrated mental and physical health approach

Action Outcome
More women with access to evidence 
based specialist Mental Health care 
during perinatal period

By 20/21 increased care provision for at 
least 30,000 more women nationally. This is 
equivalent to around 300 women in Devon.

People living with severe Mental 
Health problems should have 
physical health needs met

By 20/21 at least 280,000 offered screening 
and secondary prevention reflecting the 
higher risk of poor health. This is equivalent 
to around 3,000 people in Devon.

Mental Health inpatient services 
should be smoke free 

by 2018 smoke free

Increase access to evidence based 
psychological therapies to reach 25% 
of need - adults with anxiety and 
depression (IAPT)

By 20/21 600,000 more adults each year 
(350,000 complete treatment). This is 
equivalent to around 6,000 more people 
(3,500 completing treatment) in Devon.

3) Promoting good Mental Health and preventing poor Mental Health

Action Outcome
Children and young people are a 
priority groups for mental health 
promotion and prevention

By 20/21 at least 70,000 nationally more 
children and young people should have 
access to highest quality MH care. This is 
equivalent to around 700 more children and 
young people in Devon.

More people living with mental health 
problems should be supported to find 
or stay in work through increasing 
access to psychological therapies for 
common mental health problems and 
expanding access to individual 
placement and support (IPS)

By 20/21 each year up to 29,000 nationally 
more helped to find or stay in employment. 
This is equivalent to around 300 more 
people in Devon.

Page 9



The national planning guidance for 2018/19 sets out the following requirements in addition to the 
requirement to deliver in full the implementation plan for the Mental Health Five Year Forward 
View for all ages;

 Additional psychological therapies so that at least 19% of people with anxiety and 
depression access treatment, with the majority of the increase from the baseline of 15% to 
be integrated with primary care;

 More high-quality mental health services for children and young people, so that at least 
32% of children with a diagnosable condition are able to access evidence-based services 
by April 2019, including all areas being part of Children and Young People Improving 
Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT) by 2018;

 Expand capacity so that more than 53% of people experiencing a first episode of psychosis 
begin treatment with a NICE-recommended package of care within two weeks of referral;

 Increase access to individual placement support for people with severe mental illness in 
secondary care services by 25% by April 2019 against 2017/18 baseline;

 Commission community eating disorder teams so that 95% of children and young people 
receive treatment within four weeks of referral for routine cases; and one week for urgent 
cases; and

 Reduce suicide rates by 10% against the 2016/17 baseline
 CCGs are also required to meet the minimum investment standard in Mental Health in 

2018/19 (where mental health spending grows faster than its overall funding growth)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Economic case
Nationally, mental health accounts for 23% of ‘burden of disease’ (a composite measure of 
premature mortality and reduced quality of life) but spending on mental health services is 
equivalent to around 11% of secondary health care budgets (Kings Fund).

At least £1 in every £8 spent on long-term conditions is linked to poor mental health and wellbeing 
(Kings Fund), another way to consider this is that underinvestment in mental health provision 
leads to a higher physical health expenditure.  

This means that between £8bn and £13bn of NHS spending in England is attributable to mental 
illness co-morbid with long-term conditions.  These people generally use more healthcare 
resources and contribute to wider costs in the community such as sickness absence, cost of 
informal care and support from friends and family.  This has also been established as the case in 
Devon.

The NHS figures do not include the wider costs of mental health associated with unemployment, 
social care, children, disorderly conduct, alcohol, substance misuse and suicide.

Poor mental health carries an economic and social cost of £105 billion a year in England (Centre 
for Mental Health) – roughly the cost of the entire NHS. Taking a Devon share of this (based on 
national finding allocation as a rough guide), Devon’s economy could expect around £1-£2 billion 
as an economic and social cost from poor mental health.   The figure includes the costs of health 

Page 10



and social care for people with mental health problems, lost output in the economy, for example 
from sickness absence and unemployment, and the human costs of reduced quality of life
An independent analysis of Devon’s mental health services identified that without system-wide 
investment in integrated physical and mental health there is a potential shortfall in funding of 
between £18.9 and £21.1m by 2021.

There is a potential opportunity to save c£55m from the Devon health system over the next 5 
years as well as improving outcomes and health and wellbeing by investing in evidence-based 
integrated mental health services.  This would contribute to the financial wellbeing of the whole 
health and social care economy as well as address the potential shortfall in funding shortfall 
identified by 2021.

Cost of Long Term Conditions in Devon
Long term conditions (LTCs) are a significant cost to health and social care services in Devon.  
The table below illustrates the estimated numbers of people with a variety of LTCs and their 
associated costs.  

Source: Devon County Council: Devon Health and Wellbeing

As set out in stating the complex needs in Devon, the overlap between LTC and MH is stark:  30% 
of people with LTC have a mental health problem, and 46% of people with a MH problem are 
suffering from a LTC. 

The majority of people with lower complexity of needs can be referred to Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies (IAPT) which has had a significant success rate.  Data from April 2012 to 
March 2015 shows that across Devon, of around 24,000 people were seen, 60% experienced a 
reliable improvement in their mental health and most positively, 40% were deemed to have 
recovered.

Data from NHSE’s first and second wave early implementation sites for integrating IAPT services 
with physical health pathways show significant savings are already being made.  Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough CCG found introducing IAPT services to diabetes, cardiovascular and 
respiratory pathways saved £193k per annum by reducing the number of times these people 
needed to visit GPs, physiotherapists, specialist and practice nurses, and A&E as well as being 
admitted to hospital.

Page 11



The evaluation found that for the 500 people involved in the integrated IAPT for long term 
conditions in the area:

 A&E attendances fell by 61% and hospital IP admissions by 75%
 GP appointments across the 3 specialties fell by 73%

Medically Unexplained Symptoms (MUS)
People with somatoform disorders (mental illnesses that cause bodily symptoms that cannot be 
traced back to a physical cause) account for as many as:

 20% of new consultations in primary care
 7% of all prescriptions
 25% of outpatient care
 8% of inpatient bed days
 5% of A&E attendances

The estimated cost to the NHS of MUS nationally is £3.1bn.  Approximately half the cost (£1.2bn) 
was associated with inpatient care of less than 10% of people with MUS, thus a relatively small 
number of people receive very expensive and inappropriate care. (NHS Confederation Mental 
Health Network 2015).

Translating this to the Devon population, 80% of which are over 18, that means that people with 
severe MUS account for approximately 1% of each GP’s population and therefore there are about 
10,000 people with severe MUS.  We estimate that we spend in Devon between £3.6m and £8.3m 
on diagnostic, outpatient and inpatient stays for people presenting with functional symptoms with 
no organic pathology.

A fully functioning integrated psychological and medical service based on the service implemented 
in Oxford could tackle the variation in A&E attendances and acute admissions.  Not only does this 
make a more effective use of healthcare resources it also improves the experience and outcomes 
for people who can become locked into a medicalised approach to their care which will not meet 
their needs. 

Acute Physical Healthcare Utilisation
It is estimated that by reducing the variation in how frequently people with mental health needs 
access acute services as compared to people who don’t have mental health needs the STP could 
save up to £1.2m in A&E attendances and up to £28m by reducing acute hospital activity for those 
with mental health needs to the same level as the rest of the population.

Complex MH Care – what it currently costs in Devon
Treating complex mental health problems in Devon represents significant cost for a relatively small 
percentage of the population as set out below;
£2m per year in acute hospitals on ‘specialising’ – where people need 1:1 ward 
care
£3m on out of area adult MH inpatient beds

Page 12



£13m on Individual Patient Placements 
£250k per year for a secure bed
£100k - £200k per year in locked care
£600 per night in a PICU
£80k per year for intensive community care

Investment in and focus on the top complex cases could result in significant savings for the 
system.  For instance, by focusing on the top 50 people who experience complex Personality 
Disorder (who have been identified as having a high morbidity) and investing in Community 
Intensive Recovery Teams (CIRTs) as Sheffield has, the cost per annum reduces from £200k to 
£90k – a £5.5m saving per annum for this patient group.

The next group of people with complex mental health needs (220 people) could be supported in 
settings outside of acute beds through focussed assertive community treatment (ACT).  
Investment in this community service would reduce the annual cost per patient from £90k to £50k, 
a saving to the system of £8m per annum.

Dementia
At a conservative estimate, the number of people in hospital beds in Devon who are medically well 
enough to leave and have dementia account for 142,350 bed days per year at a cost of £36m.  
Targeted investment in evidence-based interventions such as IPMS, Psychiatric liaison and co-
ordinated dementia care could help improve the physical health of people with mental health 
needs and prevent the need for admissions to both local acute beds and out of area mental health 
placements.  Support for carers is also a significant area of consideration.

Summary
The economic case shows that there are material opportunities to make qualitative improvements 
and financial efficiencies through targeted investment to focus on supporting the integration of 
physical and mental health and community based teams.  
  
The saving opportunity is in the region of c£55m (net of investment) but these savings will only 
materialise when resources and pathways are reorganised.  This would also reduce the wider 
economic impact of mental health on the Devon economy.

This is not intended to read as a priority investment schedule as a there are a number of 
hypothesis currently being tested with partial investments.

Area of Investment Investment To improve Saving 
Opportunity

IPMS expansion £1.5m Medically Unexplained Symptoms £3.6m - £8.3m
IPMS expansion £1.5m Acute admissions / A& E 

attendances
£28m

CIRT / ACT £1.5m Mental Health placements – 
change settings in which care is 
delivered to community

£13.5m 

Dementia £1.2m Acute hospital stay and 
admissions avoidance

£13m

Page 13



Total £5.7m £58.1 - 
£62.8m

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Priority areas
Taking into account the current position in Devon, the views and feedback from our stakeholders, 
the examples of great practise, the national policy context and the economic case the following 
areas of immediate priority have been identified (in line with the strategic aims);

Current State Future State
Secondary care mental health accounts for 
8.4% of Devon health expenditure which is low 
compared to a national average expenditure of 
14% and national average activity levels 
accounting for 23% of total secondary care in 
health. 

Secondary mental health care funding increased 
year on year above and beyond ‘parity of esteem’ 
funding to establish Devon in line with national 
average by 2020/21.  Increased funding linked to 
service developments showing a demonstrable 
contribution to improvement in experience, 
outcomes and cost release in acute sector.

Health and social care services and support 
for children with mental health problems and 
their families are insufficient and not 
sufficiently aligned to physical health services 
and adult services as they transition to adult 
care services.

An integrated, personalised model of provision 
that can respond to the holistic needs of a child 
or young person, their families and carers.
Seamless pathways of care and support that 
transcend policy, organisational and service 
boundaries.
An improved offer of local, universal support with 
timely access to targeted and specialist services.
Improved opportunities for children and young 
people at transition points in their life

There are insufficient care and service 
alternatives to admission to inpatient care 
(both secondary care hospital and specialist 
mental health) setting for people who could be 
supported in their communities, many of whom 
are placed out of area. 

Community based resources are sufficiently 
funded, aligned and connected to communities 
such that clinical teams have confidence to not 
recommend admission because appropriate 
alternatives are in place and/or people receive 
support in advance of reaching a point of crisis.

Health and social care services do not 
consistently meet the needs of people with 
both mental and physical health needs.  
People with mental health needs who also 
experience physical conditions have a 
significantly impaired life expectancy as 
compared to those who do not access mental 
health services.

People consistently experience a coherent and 
joined up service offer where there holistic needs 
are met and the life expectancy gap is narrowed.

Commissioning of mental health and wellbeing 
services for the c1m residents of Devon is 
fragmented as it is the responsibility of 3 local 
authorities, 2 CCGs and specialised 
commissioners.  There are many different 
improvement initiatives, not all coordinated, 

Mental Health Care Partnership for Mental Health 
and Wellbeing across Devon. 

Standardised outcomes framework with minimum 
standards, outcomes and access across all 
providers of health and social care and shared 

Page 14



and outcomes for people vary depending on 
where they live in the county. 

approaches to strengthening communities and 
voluntary sector effectiveness.

Service delivery models consistent, not uniform, 
to reflect the need and circumstances of the local 
care partnership footprints and strong link to local 
community and charity resources.  (appropriate 
governance and oversight)

‘Mental Health and Wellbeing’ support could 
do more to support and engage with 
prevention, promotion and wider determinants 
of health and wellbeing. We could do more to 
engage a broader range of partners in a 
person centred, strengths driven system.

Mental Health Care Partnership offers a broader 
partnership approach bringing together:

 expertise in prevention, promotion and the 
wider determinants of health and wellbeing 
from other STP programmes, with;

 expertise from a full range of mental health, 
care and support providers. 

The Mental Health Care Partnership will use 
outcomes as a common language across all 
partners to ensure a clear and consistent person 
centred, strengths driven approach at all times.

In describing the outcomes we will achieve against each of these priority areas and the 
transformation programmes below we will ensure that we consider and reflect the views of our 
population, including people with lived experience, children and young people, carers and the 
people who support them to better understand what they want from mental health and wellbeing 
services and how we can improve their experiences and outcomes. 

Through the delivery of the transformation programmes we will seek to ensure that the vision and 
strategic priorities are acted upon and result in a positive impact on experiences and outcomes for 
people in Devon. In doing so we will enable people to improve their life chances, we will help more 
people to be and stay healthy; and, we will enhance self-care and community resilience. We will 
achieve this by ensuring we consistently deliver modern, safe and sustainable service and by 
integrating and improving strengths based care in our communities by working in partnership with 
all providers and commissioners of health care and support.
The transformation programmes that will deliver the improvement from the current state to future 
state are as follows;

1) Children and Young People’s services
2) Crisis and Urgent Care
3) Dementia Care
4) Primary Care interface with specialist mental health services
5) Development of Mental Health Care Partnership (MHCP)

Page 15



Transformation programme 1 – Children and Young People’s services

Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council, Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical 
Commissioning Group and South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group are tendering 
a range of children’s and young people’s services including emotional health and wellbeing. The 
full tender documentation can be found on the following link;  

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/children-and-young-people/procurement-102759

As a part of this process the following principles have been identified as being required to underpin 
future service provision to children and young people;

 Prevention is a Fundamental Aspect of Provision: whereby the provider priorities the 
early identification of each child or young person’s needs and risks to health so as to help 
avoid them becoming ill. 

 Early Help Should be Embedded Across the System: children and young people, their 
families and carers will be offered help and information early in their life and early in the 
development of specific needs, whether these are by health and/or care or educational 
needs.

 Innovation and Evidence Based Provision: commissioners and providers will 
continuously strive to improve the lives of children and young people through innovation 
and ensuring the best and most current evidence is used by existing practise and systems. 
Together we will use technology and different ways of working with children and young 
people, using methods of communication that will engage them effectively. 

 Sustainability is Key: commissioners and providers will use early help and proactive 
intervention, will help drive sustainability of the system. However, we will also need to 
ensure efficiency and effectiveness through the use of technology and good workforce 
management. 

 Systems Should be Responsive and Accessible: the system will respond to the 
changing needs of the population delivering support that is designed with children, young 
people, their families and carers and that is delivered at the right time and in the right place.

 Services Should be Personalised and use a strength based approach: this develops 
choice and control for children, young people, their families and carers using known 
information to tailor and personalise the response. 

 Systems and Services Should be Integrated: to ensure that it is united by a common 
focus on delivering outcomes for children, young people, their families and carers within a 
co-ordinated seamless experience.  There is ‘no wrong door’ and professionals are able to 
work across the system to deliver the best possible care. The integrated system uses 
information and data to develop and deliver effective practise. It is also capable of 
understanding, managing and accepting risks with children, young people, their families 
and carers.

 Build Upon the Strength and Resilience of Individuals, Families and Communities: 
recognise that children and young people live in families and communities; value and 
enable the role these play in developing and sustaining happiness, wellness, health, and 
safety. Empower children, young people and their families to help themselves, build 
resilience and safely manage risks.

Page 16

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/children-and-young-people/procurement-102759


These principles build on the feedback taken from engagement with people and stakeholders as 
well as national policy and good practice. 

By late June 2018 complete the completive procurement dialogue process with bidders

By August 2018 formally award contract

April 2019 contract start date

Page 17



Transformation programme 2 – Crisis and Urgent Care

The goal is delivery of a comprehensive range of services, community resources and support 
networks that avoid crises escalating where possible, and provide timely, accessible and 
compassionate support to those in a crisis.  As already outlined this is also a key area of national 
policy outlined through the 7 day NHS priority in the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health.
A number of the developments within the programme will support providing alternatives to 
admissions and through doing so the national standard of no inappropriate out of area placements 
by 2021.  Significant expenditure is incurred through placing people out of area; this expenditure 
could better invested in local services.

A gap analysis demonstrates that the current system is focused on providing mental health 
assessments (tier 2) and inpatient and psychiatric intensive care beds (tier 4 and 5) with significant 
gaps in the provision of alternatives (tier 1 and 3).  It is in these areas, in particular, that further 
strategic planning is required. 

 Tier 1- Low need, high volume   

A number of the services at this level require multi agency co-ordination and support and 
significant working through partnership across health, social care, voluntary organisations and 
local communities.

Investment in this tier will have system wide benefits to acute care, mental health and social care 
by reducing escalation to primary and secondary care services by supporting a citizen led 
approach with more resilience and support built into local communities.

By the end of December 2018 an outline plan will be developed to consider the partnerships 
required to provide support and capacity to avoid the escalation to crisis and support in the 
community.  

 Tier 2 - Access routes

Single point of access (SPA) – Urgent or emergency mental health help and support to people not 
currently receiving care and treatment from a Community Mental Health Teams.  The single point 
of access (available 24 hours a day and 7 days a week) provides a single route to obtain urgent 
advice across mental health services in urgent situations. The access and triage elements of the 
SPA will support the allocation of urgent assessment slots and enable this part of the pathway to 
become more operationally efficient. This will enable Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment 
(CRHT) teams to focus greater capacity on intensive home treatment and not assessments.  By 
the end of August 2018 SPA will be in place across Devon.

First response service – by the end of September 2018 a full evaluation of the existing national 
best practice service model from to determine service specification for Devon and roll out 
plan/investment.

Psychiatric liaison – continue the roll out of existing plans to achieve core 24 standards

Page 18



 Tier 3 - Alternatives to admission

By the end of September 2018 an outline plan will be developed to consider the partnerships 
required to provide alternatives to admission and support in the community.

This will include capacity of Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment teams, ‘step down’ and crisis 
housing capacity (including supported living) and rehabilitation.

 Tier 4 - Inpatient services

The number of inpatient beds required for the population of Devon is not only a function of the 
health and wellbeing of the population but also the capacity and effectiveness of the other levels of 
service and support described in tiers 1 to 4.  The bed requirement over the life of the strategy will 
be considered in the context of these other plans and developments. 

 Tier 5 - Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit

There is currently no Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit available for people in Devon.  People who 
require this service currently receive treatment out of area.  Plans are in place to build a local 
Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit in Exeter by November 2018, with the unit becoming fully 
operational by the end of January 2019.

Page 19



Transformation programme 3 – Dementia Care

By providing consistency of service available to individuals with Dementia and their families, the 
experience and the care received will improve, and allow them to ‘live well with Dementia’ which 
should also reduce admissions to both physical and mental health secondary care services. 

There will be further benefits in relation to a reduction in escalation of the condition, the 
appearance of Behavioural and Psychological Symptoms in Dementia (BPSD) and the need for 
admission to nursing/residential care homes.

To assess the Devon baseline position against NICE guidance, a gap analysis has been 
completed. Primary and Secondary Care organisations, Local Authorities, Voluntary Sector 
Providers and Mental Health organisations within Devon participated through completion of a self-
assessment tool.  Through this work the following immediate areas of priority have been identified 
as a part of the strategy;

• Expansion of the Dementia Adviser Service

Within the NICE Guidance for Dementia (Draft January 2018) there is a clear need to for 
individuals with Dementia to have a named coordinator, to support them post diagnosis to live well 
with Dementia. This will ensure that there is early support for individuals before they reach crisis. 
This will improve outcomes for individuals and their carer/family. 

Additionally, evidence has indicated that there is also a need for specialist support to staff within a 
physical Acute and Community setting, to avoid non-elective admissions where possible, to 
reduce lengths of stay and to support decision making in terms of discharge location. 

Therefore, the existing Dementia Advisor Service will be expanded to deliver an integrated service 
with secondary care and primary care and also to achieve a lower ratio of advisors to population 
(specification of which will require further definition) by the end of July 2019.

• Specialist support within Care Homes 

There has been a successful implementation of a Care Home Education and Support Team 
across some parts of Devon, including Torbay, which has been partly funded by the Improved 
Better Care Fund (iBCF). The Team was created in response to the fact that improved health 
outcomes mean that people are living longer with dementia and are much more likely to reach the 
latter stages of the illness when both behavioural challenges and frailty are much more common. 
The team support staff and individuals within Care Homes, to reduce the risk of escalation of 
symptoms, inappropriate admissions to acute hospitals or specialist Dementia wards, allowing 
individuals to remain within Care Homes for as long as is appropriate.

There will be a phased implementation of this support to Care Homes such that by the end of 
September 2018 the service will have been implemented in North Devon and a complete roll out to 
include East and West Devon (including Plymouth) by the end of April 2019.

Page 20



• Replacement respite care 

One of the key difficulties identified within the evidence used for the hypothesis was carer/family 
breakdown, which then led to an escalation in the behaviours and need for the individual with 
Dementia. 

It is clear that a ‘one size fits all’ approach is not always appropriate and therefore a range of 
options must be provided. Within Devon there are examples of activities which are being 
undertaken, as commissioned, voluntary sector or self-funding activities. 
  
Through the life of this strategy there is a clear need to engage with charities, people, carers 
and communities to encourage and stimulate innovation.  

• Prevention 

Informing people of the lifestyle factors that present a risk in terms of developing dementia and 
supporting them to make informed choices to reduce those risks is recognised as an area where 
further work is required.  Alignment with the wider prevention strategy within the STP is essential 
and dementia will have a voice in that strategy rather than a separate work stream as a part of this 
strategy.

 Awareness and training  

Awareness and training provision has been identified as inconsistent.  This also highlighted a lack 
of clarity and understanding of roles and responsibilities across the different parts of the health 
and social care sector.  It was also noted that whilst there were pockets of excellence in terms of 
Dementia Friendly Organisations and Communities and that this needed to be expanded across 
Devon.

A consistent STP wide approach to Dementia Training and to support voluntary sector 
organisations, by providing them with training materials, is required. A training needs analysis will 
be undertaken by March 2019 and implementation plan formulated and delivered from the 
beginning of June 2019.

 Dementia Diagnosis 

The national target has not been met within Devon. It was also noted that whilst there is a known 
pathway to the Memory Service, with the release of the NICE Guidance and comments around 
referrals from Community Services, the pathways should be reviewed by both provider 
organisations.

The aim is to achieve 67% by 31st March 2019, however work will need to be done as part of the 
Memory Pathway review work to ensure that primary care are fully informed and supported to 
either make a Dementia diagnosis themselves or to refer in for further evaluation with the Memory 
Service.

Page 21



Transformation programme 4 – Primary and Secondary Care interface  

The case for more integrated mental and physical health services to support patient needs with an 
emphasis around the transition between acute and primary care services has been clearly 
established both in terms of outcomes based evidence, feedback from stakeholders and is one of 
the key drivers within the Five Year Forward View. 

It is acknowledged that primary care providers have the largest number of patient contacts in the 
health system across both physical and mental health (c93%) and as such this programme also 
needs to complement and align to the Primary Care Five Year Forward View and STP Primary 
Care strategy. 

Physical health needs

Best practice evidence indicates that where primary care teams deliver care collaboratively with 
secondary care services outcomes are improved for people.  The lead responsibility for assessing 
and supporting physical health will transfer depending on where an individual is in their pathway of 
care.  

To ensure that people with mental health conditions receive the necessary physical health checks 
shared care protocols will be established between acute and primary care providers.

- By the end of September 2018 there will be an agreement in place to ensure the physical 
health checks associated with antipsychotic medication are clearly defined between primary 
and secondary care

- By End of September 2018, there will be a consistent approach across the whole of 
Devon for the delivery of physical health checks for Mental Health. There may be 
differences in terms of methodology; however the outcomes will ensure compliance with the 
targets as set out within the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health.

Pre referral advice and Guidance

As in physical healthcare pathways, allowing GPs timely access to secondary care specialist 
opinion reduces the transactional nature of a referral from primary to secondary care.  Utilising 
Information Technology clinicians are able to seek advice and guidance in a timely manner to 
better assess the nature of a patient condition before deciding whether a referral into secondary 
care services is the most appropriate course of action.  People also benefit as there is often a 
reduced delay in their progression to the best service to meet their need.  By the end of March 
2021, there will be a comprehensive IT enabled advice and guidance service universally available 
to GPs in Devon into specialist mental health services.

Education and training

Supporting people to recognise the characteristics of the varying degrees of mental illness and 
supporting them in knowing how to respond in the most appropriate way is a key aspect of the 
knowledge and experience that can be provided by secondary care clinicians to primary care 
colleagues.

Page 22



By the end of December 2018 a comprehensive and structured programme of education and 
training for primary care staff will be established with a delivery plan identified.  We will also link in 
with the Regional Teams to ensure best practice. 

Integrated Psychological Medicine Service (IPMS)

We are proposing integration in our approach to the care of people with physical and 
psychological symptoms because it will improve the outcome for people with long-term medical 
conditions, improve the care for people with unexplained symptoms and improve the medical care 
of people with mental illness. This innovation in partnership with the Centre for Mental Health, the 
University of Exeter Medical School and the Royal College of Psychiatrists aims to find the right 
model of integration for the people of Devon.

A consultant delivered service drawing from psychiatry, psychological therapies and medicine 
integral to the multidisciplinary teams working on medical and surgical care pathways.
The team will have the expertise to understand:

- Biomedical care and the creation of an evidence-based medicine management plan
- Psychological care and set a psychological therapies intervention plan to evidence based 

outcome.
- Social care and set a social care intervention plan to evidence based outcome.
- Skilled to offer brief intervention in all areas.
- Experienced in working with young people in a preventative way

The team will direct people to the most appropriate service for the intensity and complexity of the 
condition including IAPT (for psychological therapy), support for self-management of condition, 
medical psychotherapy for people with high complex needs or a link to specialist services such as 
eating disorder, substance misuse, dementia etc.

A pilot of this service has been undertaken in Exeter.  This pilot will be evaluated by the end of 
September 2018 and consideration given to the expansion of the service across Devon. 

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 

IAPT is essentially a primary care service which has significantly expanded in recent years and 
more recently to include a small number of long term conditions from secondary care referrers in 
North, East and West Devon.

By the end of June 2018 the South Devon will also have the first phase of long term conditions 
included in the service specification.

Building on the IAPT services in place across Devon, by the April 2019, these services will 
expand access to a larger number of people through a more comprehensive list of long term 
physical conditions being referred from secondary care specialists. Transformation programme 
5 - Development of Mental Health Care Partnership (MHCP)

Devon has recognized that in the context of rapid change and demographic and fiscal challenge 
there is a need to:

Page 23



 Safeguard the strategic prioritisation Mental Health
 Secure delivery of improvements in the mental health of our population
 Secure the improvement of physical health of people with mental illness

To support the achievement of the STP ambitions and the Mental Health strategy, connectedness 
of the mental health is essential. Some of the interdependencies are identified below;

Mental 
Health ACS

Local Care 
Partnership

Local Care 
Partnership

Local Care 
Partnership

Local Care 
Partnership

Strategic 
Commissioner

The goals of the MHCP are set out below;

Resources moved 
(money and scarce MH 

expertise) from 
centralised high cost 

interventions towards 
local prevention of the 

illness that requires 
those interventions, like 

suicide prevention

Re-balanced 
investment in whole 
person care through 

joint design and 
implementation of 
whole life (all age) 

systems of support for 
people, surrounding 

excellent clinal 
pathways.  

Poor patient experience; pressured primary care, secondary acute and social care; inefficient use 
of scarce MH resource; ineffective prevention; missed opportunity to empower local leaders and 

learn from others

Systems of support that 
reduce the effect of 
MH conditions on 

those with principal 
physical health issues 
and reduce the effect 

of physical health 
issues on those with 
principal MH issues

Less mental illness.
Better patient experience: joined-up care; getting early help; engaging young people; supported 
self management; influence on the whole system of care; supporting the whole of me; learning 
better by experience.   
Relieved pressure on primary care by working in local integrated teams: better screening; 
electronic consultations; ambulatory case management; telepsychiatry, psychiatric consultants 
working in a consultation-liaison model, shared data and information.
Better support to secondary acute and social care.

new models of care; bringing people back to Devon; parity of investment

Ask of MHCP Offer from MHCP

Page 24



Co-commission adequate housing, 
accommodation and occupation with relational 
care support for the most vulnerable people in 
Devon

Sharing of mental health provision for aftercare to 
help sustain and promote third sector support for 
pathways for the most vulnerable people

Co-create NEW IAPT LTC , Core24 and 
Primary Care Home models to drive mental & 
physical integration and connect with social 
care and third sector

Management of delivery of IAPT and Core24 to 
CQC outstanding in hospitals and general 
practice and support the creation of Primary Care 
Home

Fully commission specialist mental health 
teams and beds in Devon including PICU 
supported by new CIRT & FACT higher 
intensity community models

Will optimise out of county care bed use for only 
those with needs met at the 5million or 50million 
population level and supply mental expertise to 
Primary Care Home integrated care teams from 
those specialist teams face to face and by tele-
health

Commission the Dementia Case in full Will own and deliver the pathway from 
consultants to navigators engaging all sectors

Lead for suicide prevention Deliver whole population suicide prevention 
through Project Zero

Share sites, supporting functions and have 
common IT

Will share our space, our risk management, 
financial, operational and IT expertise developing 
a clinical research electronic patient record

Co-produce the workforce of the future Provide excellent education training and 
development in mental health practice, coaching, 
mentoring and supervision

Risk stratify the population for targeted 
evidence based interventions

Support the ‘place’ delivery for high volume lower 
cost, complexity & risk whilst we deliver lower 
volume higher cost, complexity & risk and share 
quality improvement expertise. [include link to 
STP Risk Stratification work]

Pool budgets around risk stratified populations Devolve budget to partners in Primary Care 
Home Model for delivery

Commission services to an established 
evidence base and where salient commission 
robust evaluation

With University partners attract international level 
research in every therapeutic area we provide for 
and conduct robust research evaluation on behalf 
of the system using the UK-CRIS clinical 
research information system to drive audit, 
evaluation, QI and research.

By May 2018;
 complete broad engagement to develop options appraisal for the scope and form of the 

MHCP
 present options appraisal to the Mental Health Programme Group

By end of May 2018 we will have in place;
 Agreed terms of reference

Page 25



 Confirmed chairing arrangements
 Established partnership arrangements
- Those with control over material resources and those who have material influence 

over how those resources are used
- Wider stakeholders
 Established baselines for finance and performance
 Accountability agreement
 Contractual arrangements

By end of May 2018 develop an engagement plan

By June 2018 develop implementation plan for form of MHCP

By September 2018 implement plan and deliver shadow contractual governance 

Page 26



1

SUMMARY REPORT 

Plymouth Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 26 September 2018

Subject Flu vaccinations for front line staff

Prepared by Martin Bamber and Amanda Nash
Approved by Steven Keith

Purpose
Decision

Approval

Information 

The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of the work done to date to 
encourage flu vaccination amongst our staff and plans for this year.

Assurance

Corporate Objectives
Improve Quality Develop our Workforce Improve Financial Position Create Sustainable Future

   

Executive Summary 
This report gives a brief update on the work done to increase flu vaccination uptake amongst staff at 
University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust in 2017/18 and plans for this year.

UHPT Flu Campaign 2017/18

1 Last year, the Trust significantly increased its staff flu vaccination uptake, increasing the 
number of staff involved in direct patient care having been vaccinated to 68% in comparison to 
58.1% in the previous year. 

There was a full communications plan supporting this which was evaluated as having been a 
success with the circa 10% increase in the desired behaviour change.

2 The Trust has developed a Flu Vaccination Action Plan for 2018/19, which takes into account 
all of the national guidance and best practice, to aim to further improve the uptake of the 
vaccine for our staff this year.  All Trust staff will be offered the vaccine at no cost to them. This 
is once again supported by a comprehensive communications plan which builds on the insight 
work we have done to understand what motivates staff to be vaccinated or stops them taking 
up the offer of the free jab.

Our plans this year, include a greater number of local departmental vaccinators (in addition to a 
central group of mobile vaccinators); a number of high profile launch and campaign events; 
highlighting the benefits to staff of the quadrivalent vaccine with “flu myth buster” messages 
from members of the Executive Team; working with Plymouth Albion Rugby Club to help our 
campaign and to stress the importance of the vaccine to stay healthy and well; incentives such 
as supporting the Unicef “get a jab give a jab” scheme (see below); and an emphasis on the 
importance of the vaccine to protect patients, staff themselves and their families. This will, as 
normal, be supported by a suite of promotion materials including posters, screen savers and 
videos.

Page 1



4.  Conclusion and recommendations

The Trust saw a sizeable increase in uptake last year and has plans in place to build on this 
in 2018/19. This starts with the launch of our 2018/19 staff flu programme on Monday 1 
October:

Key Recommendations
The Committee is asked to:
1. Note the report

Next Steps
The plan gives outline details of the 2018/19 plan which will be implemented.

Page 2



 

  

 HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

OVERVIEW SCRUTINY COMMITTE 

Work Programme 2018 - 19

 
Please note that the work programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at 

short notice.  

 

For general enquiries relating to the Council’s Scrutiny function, including this committee’s work 

programme, please contact Amelia Boulter, Democratic Support Officer, on 01752 304570. 
 

 

Date of 

meeting 

 

Agenda item 

 

Prioritisation 

Score 

 

Reason for consideration 

 

Responsible 

Cabinet Member 

/  Officer 

13 June 

2018 

Health Landscape  

To give the committee a better 

understanding of the current health 

landscape for Plymouth. 

Ian Tuffin, Carole 

Burgoyne, Craig 

McArdle, Ruth 

Harell 

Integrated Commissioning 

Scorecard 
- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

Integrated Finance 

Monitoring Report 
- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 
 

 

25 July 

2018 

Emergency Department 

 
 

To receive an update on waiting 

times. 
Kevin Baber 

Healthwatch Annual 

Report 
 

Annual Report and overview of 

2017 – 18 
Karen Marcellino 

CQC Action Plan Update   
Craig McArdle 

 

Integrated Commissioning 

Action Plans / 

Performance Scorecard 

- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

Integrated Fund 

monitoring Report 
- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

 

26 Sept 

2018 

CQC Reports for 

Derriford and Livewell 
   

Update on Never Events 

(Plymouth Herald report 

on 13 August 2018) 

   

Western System -Winter 

Plan 

 

 

To include the plans from the NHS 

as well as looking at flu vaccinations 

for staff.   

NHS, CCG 

Page 1



 

 

 

Date of 

meeting 

 

Agenda item 

 

Prioritisation 

Score 

 

Reason for consideration 

 

Responsible 

Cabinet Member 

/  Officer 

Flu Jabs for Front Line staff 

– how this is promoted 

and uptake 

   

STP Mental Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy 

 

   

Integrated Finance 

Monitoring Report 
- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

Integrated Commissioning 

Score Card 
- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

 

25 Oct 

2018 

Dental Access 

 
   

Director of Public Health 

Annual Report 
   

Planned Care 

 
   

Electronic Prescriptions 

 
   

Integrated Finance 

Monitoring Report 
 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

Integrated Commissioning 

Score Card 
 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

    

21 Nov 

2018 

Monitoring of missed 

hospital and doctor 

appointments. 

   

Healthwatch Contract 

 
   

Integrated Commissioning 

 
   

Integrated Finance 

Monitoring Report 
 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

Integrated Commissioning 

Score Card 
 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

 

 

23 Jan 

2019 

Update on STP  and 

structure 
   

 Capitated Fair Shares    

Page 2



 

 

 

Date of 

meeting 

 

Agenda item 

 

Prioritisation 

Score 

 

Reason for consideration 

 

Responsible 

Cabinet Member 

/  Officer 

 Position Statement (STP) 

 
Integrated Finance 

Monitoring Report 
- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

 
Integrated Commissioning 

Score Card 
- 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

 

27 March 

2018 

Care Need Assessments   Craig McArdle 

    

Integrated Finance 

Monitoring Report 
 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

Integrated Commissioning 

Score Card 
 

Standing Item – Written briefing 

only. Members to advise the Chair 

if matters arising require presence 

of an officer / or addition to work 

programme. 

- 

 
 

Items to be scheduled 

 Safeguarding Adults Board   Update and Annual Report Andy Bickley 

 

Select Committee Reviews 

 End of Life Care  Member request  

 Urgent Care    

 
GP Select Committee - 

Update 
   

 

Cross scrutiny items 

 Health and Brexit    

 

Adult and Children’s 

Mental Health to include 

Self-Harming 

   

 
Care Leavers up to 25 

years. 
   

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Tracking Decisions – 17 July 2018 Official

Minute No. Resolution Target Date, Officer 
Responsible and Progress

13 June 2018

Overview of 
the Health 
Landscape - 
Minute 5

Members agreed that a document with key contacts for emergency casework issues would be 
created and circulated to Councillors.

Date:  July 2018
Officer: Amelia Boulter
Progress:  Email sent to 
officer requesting 
information.

P
age 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust CQC Report
	Copy of 2018.09.13  UHP CQC Action Plan

	6 Never Events Update
	8 STP Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy
	9 Flu Vaccinations for Front Line Staff
	10 Work Programme
	11 Tracking Resolutions

